EAST BUCHANAN COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA - Regular School Board Meeting
January 12, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. in Library - Middle School Entrance

1. Call To Order/Mission Statement - To challenge students to think critically, communicate effectively,
develop values and contribute to society.

2. Public Forum - During this time we welcome interested persons who may wish to present comments,
suggestions, or concerns in regard to any programs operated by the school district. However, an item must be
included on the Agenda before the Board can officially act upon it.

3. Approve Agenda

4. Approve Consent Agenda

a. Minutes from Regular Meeting on December 8, 2021

Minutes from Special Meeting on January 7, 2022

Minutes from Special Meeting on January 10, 2022

Personnel Changes

Inter-agency Agreements

Early Graduation Requests

List of Bills

Financial Reports

5. Community/Program Presentations

a. FIRST Tech Challenge robotics team
6. Administrative Updates & Reports
a. Secondary Update
b. District/Elementary Update
c. Facilities Update
7. Agenda
a. SBRC Application for At-Risk/Dropout Modified Supplement Amount (MSA)

Bus Purchase

Athletic Complex & Playground

Board Policy - OSHA Vaccine Mandate

Board Policy Review - 2nd Reading of IASB Quarterly Policy Updates (6/26/20)
O 409 series
O 414 series

f. Board Policy Review - 1st Reading of IASB Quarterly Policy Updates (10/7/21)
O 105 - Assistance Animals
[J 200.1 - Organization of the Board of Directors
(3 210.8 - Board Meeting Agenda
O 212 - Closed Sessions
O 212.1 - Exempt Meetings
(3 307 - Communication Channels
(J 401.4 - Employee Complaints
0 502.4 - Student Complaints & Grievances
, [ 606.6 - Insufficient Classroom Space

8. Buccaneer Brag-About

9. Student Questions

10. Adjourn

Tae o a0y

® oo o



East Buchanan Community School District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 8, 2021

Call to Order: President Greg Schmitt called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. The board recited the East Buchanan
Mission Statement. Board members present were Greg Schmitt, Scott Cooksley, Andy Sperfslage, Heather Steffens,
and Shawn Stone. Administration attending were Superintendent/Elementary Principal Dan Fox, HS/MS Principal Eric
Dockstader, and Business Manager/Board Secretary Teresa Knipper. Several visitors attended d the meeting.

Approve Agenda: Motion to approve the agenda was made by Cooksley, second by Stone. Motion carried with all
ayes.

Approve Consent Agenda: Motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Cooksley, second by Steffens.
Motion carried with all ayes. Items included on the Consent Agenda: minutes from the regular meeting on
November 17, 2021; expenditures listed; financial reports; hiring of Thomas Crawford as MS boy’s basketball coach;
approval of inter-agency agreements for special education with West Delaware and Starmont; and early graduation
requests.

FY2021 Financial Reports: The FY2021 financial reports were submitted to the board. Motion to approve the
reports was made by Stone, second by Cooksley. Motion carried with all ayes.

Acceptance of Abstract of Votes: Results of the election were presented as Tim Recker for District 1 and Scott Cooksley for
Director at Large. Motion to accept the abstract of election was made by Sperfslage, second by Steffens. The board thanked
Greg Schmitt for his dedication to the district as a school board member for eight years

Appointment of President Pro-tem: Motion by Sperfslage, second by Stone to appoint the board secretary as President Pro-
tem. Motion carried with all ayes.

Adjourn: Motion was made by Sperfslage, second by Stone to adjourn the annual meeting at 5:07 pm.
Call to Order: The organizational meeting was called to order at 5:08 pm by the board secretary.

Oath of office to new board member: The board secretary administered the Oath of Office to newly elected board member
Tim Recker.

Election of President: The board secretary took nominations for president. Motion by Stone to nominate
Sperfslage. Steffens motioned to cease nominations. Motion carried with all ayes to approve Sperfslage as
president. The oath of office was administered by the board secretary.

Election of Vice-President: Sperfslage took nominations for vice-president. Motion by Cooksley to nominate
Steffens. Motion by Sperfslage to nominate Stone. Steffens was elected vice-president with a vote of 3 to 2. The
oath of office was administered by the president.

Appoint Board Secretary: Motion by Stone, second by Steffens to appoint Teresa Knipper as board secretary.
Motion carried with all ayes. The oath of office was administered by the president.

Appoint Board Treasurer: Motion by Steffens, second by Recker to appoint Marilyn Steinkamp as board treasurer.
Motion carried with all ayes.

Appoint Legal Counsel: Motion by Cooksley, second by Sperfslage to appoint Steve Weidner of Swisher and Cohrt
as legal counsel. Motion carried with all ayes.

Approve Official Depositories: Motion by Stone, second by Cooksley to approve the official depositories and
maximum deposits as: Citizens State Bank ($10 million), UMB ($2 million), and ISJIT ($2 million). Motion carried
with all ayes.



East Buchanan Community School District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 8, 2021

Name Official Publication: Motion by Cooksley, second by Steffens to approve The Winthrop News as official
publication for the district. Motion carried with all ayes.

Establish dates and times of school board meetings: Motion by Stone, second by Steffens to approve the second
Wednesday of each month at 5:00 pm as the school board meeting date and time. Motion carried with all ayes.

Facilities Update: Architect Josh Demmer and engineer Brian Crawford presented plans, time line, and estimates
for improvements to the athletic complex and playground/outdoor learning center. After discussing the options, the
board directed Fox to get an estimate to move the Kids Corner building from its current location to the vacant lot to
the south so that the maintenance building and playground/outdoor learning center could be built west of the
elementary building. Demmer Architecture submitted a cost of services proposal for $78,400. Crawford
Engineering & Services submitted a work authorization totaling $19,000 to the board for both projects. Motion by
Stone, second by Recker to approve the Crawford Engineering authorization to proceed.

Administrative Updates and Reports: Dockstader presented attendance policy ideas based on policies from
surrounding districts and provided MS/HS attendance data. Fox reported that weather alerts will no longer be
through govdelivery but did state that they will continue to be done through the designated television and radio
stations. Fox also reported that the elementary concert is on December 13™ and that the new district website will be
active on December 13",

Buchanan County Conference Board — Shawn Stone volunteered to be the district’s representative for the
Buchanan County Conference Board. His appointment was approved by all members.

Board Policy Review — 2nd Reading — Motion by Steffens, second by Cooksley to approve the second reading of
policies 407.6 and 413.2 regarding certified and classified employee retirement policies. Motion carried with all

ayes.

Board Policy Review — 1st Reading — Motion by Steffens, second by Cooksley to approve the first reading of the
409 and 414 series. Motion carried with all ayes.

Buccaneer Brag-About — Scott Cooksley has been in the 1% grade classrooms to read to them, ten students have had
perfect attendance for the first 71 days of school, the FFA fiuit is here, the female wrestlers placed at a recent
tournament, and the elementary teachers do a great job getting the students excited for the holidays.

Student Questions — Students asked the board about the track and plans for the old playground.

Adjourn — Motion by Stone, second by Cooksley to adjourn the meeting at 7:32 pm. Motion carried with all ayes.

The above are not official minutes until approved at the next regular board meeting. A copy of the official minutes
may be viewed in the office of the Board Secretary any Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.



East Buchanan Community School District
Special Board Meeting Minutes — January 7, 2022

Call to Order: President Andy Spetfslage called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. Board members present were Scott
Cooksley, Tim Recker, and Andy Sperfslage. Board members attending by phone were Heather Steffens and Scott
Cooksley. Superintendent/Elementary Principal Dan Fox attended for administration. One visitor was present.

Approve Agenda: Motion to approve the agenda was made by Recker, second by Stone. Motion carried with all
ayes.

Board Policy 403.7 Series - Motion by Cooksley, second by Recker to table 403.7 series board policy, regulation, and
examples until Monday, January 10, 2022 so the board could get results from the Supreme Court before any action was
taken. Motion carried with all ayes.

Adjourn — Motion by Stone, second by Cooksley to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried with all ayes.

The above are not official minutes until approved at the next regular board meeting. A copy of the official minutes
may be viewed in the office of the Board Secretary any Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.



East Buchanan Community School District
Special Board Meeting Minutes — January 10, 2022

Call to Order: President Andy Sperfslage called the meeting to order at 7:00 am. Board members present were Scott
Cooksley, Tim Recker, Andy Sperfslage, and Shawn Stone. Board Member Heather Steffens was absent.
Superintendent/Elementary Principal Dan Fox attended for administration.

Approve Agenda: Motion to approve the agenda was made by Recker, second by Stone. Motion carried with all
ayes.

Board Policy 403.7 Series — Superintendent Fox recommended (per school attorney recommendation) the motion to
act on 403.7 series board policy, regulation, and examples be tabled because lowa OSHA has clearly indicated that it
will not be implementing or enforcing the federal ETS. It was recommended that the board act once there is clear
guidance from the state. Motion by Stone, second by Cooksley to table the policy series. Motion carried with all ayes.

Adjourn — Motion by Stone, second by Recker to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried with all ayes.

The above are not official minutes until approved at the next regular board meeting. A copy of the official minutes
may be viewed in the office of the Board Secretary any Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.



East Buchanan CSD
Personnel Changes

SB Mtg date |Employee Type Position Notice Date | Effective Date Salary Schedule
1/12/2022 | Lauren James Hire Associate
1/12/2022 | Courtney Snyder Reslgnation Associate




EAST BUCHANAN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
ADMINISTRATION 414 STH STREET NORTH
Daniel J. Fox WINTHROP, IOWA 50682
Superintendent
Eric Dockstader

Secondary Principal PHONE: (319) 935-3367
Daniel J. Fox FAX: (319) 935-3749
Elementary Principal

Teresa Knipper http://www.eastbuchananschools.com
Board Secretary/Business Manager @EB_Bucs #BucPrlde

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Andy Sperfslage
President
Heather Steffens
Vice President
Scott Cooksley
Tim Recker
Shawn Stone

January 11, 2022

Early Graduation Applicants

The seniors listed below have applied for early graduation. They will graduate on February 23, 2022,
at the end of trimester 2 if they have earned the required credits, reached the necessary 66 credits and

their request is approved by the East Buchanan School Board.

Shania Rasmussen
Hayden Weber

Thank you.

e Mitherscr

Paula McGraw, Counselor
Eric Dockstader, MS/HS Principal



vele

00°026°€

00°0Z6'c

8¥'9/L°E

¥8'ce
00°009C
¥9'€Ss

00°41

00°L1

89726V}

8926Vl

00°€69

00°€69

9£'299°G1

9£'299'GlL

¥S'650°1

0915
¥6'¥iS

VA A%

FAR A T4

8L°¢lL

9e'g
1A
91°6L
9e'G0e
0L'LL
9¢°G0¢

S6°66€

G6°66¢€

JUNoWY 3010AU]

MALL -dl Jesn
| :obed

TBUNN 0347 O 1Unoooy bubpauy 31eq SpsiD

S3NddNS SO4-LAVINTYAA

ONINIVYL I1dD

S3lddNS HO3AL
FAYMILHOS 59¢ 301440
ADINYIS A3SYHIHENd HOAL

ONINIIHOS 413

S334 NOILOT13
JOVEdVYO
JIHLO313/SYD

dTISNOHNIFHD
dT13ISNOHNIIED

S3AIddNS VoI 12313

sued g9 100y
SHed g9 Jeoy
SHed g9 Jeoy
AINIWIOVTdIY OO8INOYHD
SHed 49 180y
MOOFANOHHD INIWIDV 143N

SI8juUd J0J Uy SOUBUSUIBY PUE JOUO |

UoRAUDSaq
AaNN4 Tvd3INTD

S3JINY3S AHvO ISYHD

VAV SYIAIL TVHINID

ONI “LNINWNY3A0D Mad
ONI “LNIWNYIAOD Mad
ONI “LNINNYEIA0D Mad

OU| JUSLWISSBSSY Wniquie)

HO11dNY ALNNOD NYNVYHONE

"ONI ‘dSI3 LSYM MMVH Movig

ADYIANT INVITIV

S abeyuepby
S 4 abeluepby

ONILHOIT FHNIN3AQY

dio) aormuag 3oy
di09 so1nIeg Jooy
dioD 901uag 190y
dio) ao1nueg Jooy
dio) 221n9g Jaoy
duon aoinueg Jaoy

“ONI “FOIAY3S YISV INTIOV

SWeN JOPUSA

(1e303qns sopuaa) Bunsi a210Au)

UOnOLoSa([ pund 'Zz0g AMenuer-0)/[elauas) Uonauoseq Joieg pajsoanr)

QHYISVYHD *

omao K
omao ¥

OMAd

3SSVanvo

1anvHONg

AMVYHIOVY1E

ULNTIV

SAVADY
S4VADY

HOM3IAav

¥30V
Y30V
q30V
¥30V
H30V
q30V

H3ISVI300V

arIopusn

Wd Zg'¢l 22oerel/io

100YSS Ayunwiwod ueueyong jseq



00°9¢1L

00'9ct

S3NddNS NOILYILHOdSNVY L

S5'889°c

6G'889°¢

INOHJ3TFL

0L°ZiL'E

0L°0¢.
00'2ZS¥'C

JIIAY3S YIHSINDNILXT 314
JOIAYIS YIHSINONILXE FHIS

vZ 08l

vc o8l

JADIAY3S A3SVHIHENd

9E'6.l¥'y

SE6LY Y

HO1VW dIVOId3IW J1V1S

05°59¢

06°59¢

HIVd3y INIHOVIN 301

v6°LEZ°)

¥6'L€2'L

JONVNILNIVIN 431402

0l°G0E

0009
0L'sve

S1S31 ONINIIHIS
S1S31 ONIN33HOS

geleL

se'lct

80162 L ZzZ0Z/I0/L0 HAMIS/H31IVM

143

(A4

JDING3S A3SYHIANd NOILYIHOdSNVH L

00°208

00 ¥Se
08'8¢
g£e'se
18°8L
0L°s¥C
90°.¢€

JUNOUIY S210AU]

AL Al i8sn
Z :abed

Z-Y ONINHVY3AT
S3ANddNS WITI-LAVINTYA
S3IddNS 301440 WINI-NOZVINY
ONIddIHS-SdN
S3NddNS 989-040Z
SIAdNS SO4-SACOH dOYHINIM
Gonamossq
[NEERCEENED)

TOqUIAN 0300 QI Ianco0y BUBpRaUD 318q SpauD

Honduosa(Qg pund "ZZ0z AenuEr-0lg/[esalag) uonduosa] Uoieg paisooun
(1e303gns Jopuaa) Bunsi 9210Au)

"ou| ‘10 poomabpg 103903

INOHJI 1L 400D NVNYHONG 1Sv3 Hd313143

"ONI “LNINCINDZ IdI4 Inonana ERIENEe]
|.oz_ ‘ININCIND3 314 IndNgnaA Fuidnana
- D1 LM 2 NOd 1IvMNOQ
|.._n_ 1S1 d3IHSVO SHA SHa
o._u_ Wzl_._ooo ® ONILYIH S3AY0D  1v3Hauoo
. ONI SWILSAS AdOD 1SASAdOD
"ONI 'SALYID0SSY % ¥3d00D 1D d0092ro
"ONI ‘'S3LVID0SSY ® YIAd00D 1D ~ doodrd
dOYHLNIM 40 ALID

ANIMALID

‘00 ONIJIANNYT ALID NNVIALID

SIAVINGTS QYYD ISYHD  auwosvHo
S3VINYTS AUVD ISVHD  auvosvHo
S3IOINGIS QYYD ISVHD  quvosvHo
SADINGTS QYYD ISVHD  quvosvHo
S3OINYES QYYD ASYHD  quvosvHD
S30INY3S QYYD ISVHD  guvosvHo

SWeN Jopusp QI Jopusp

Wd 2¢€¢l 22oe/eiiio
j00Yos AUnWWo) ueuBYONg JSB]

5



EEEA 14

GG LSk S31MddNS Nyvd Sng TYIONVNIS J¥FIA NHOM  3uzganHor &
8h'1LS
66°LLY JISNIN ANV "ONI ‘NOS 8 ¥3dd3d ‘MT  w3ddgame X
00'G. JISNIN HIOHD SH "ONI ‘NOS ® ¥3ddad MTT  waddzamr %
6V %2 Q1049 SH Joy asnpy "ONI ‘NOS 8 ¥Add3ad MT  y3ddIdmr
00°08S
00085 IDIAYIS QISYHOIHNd ONIMVS TIYM VMOl Tivmvmor K
00°0S
00°0S QuvMyY SAUV0d TO0HIS 40 DOSSY VAOI gsvi
00°€9
00°€9 SHIVdIY O%dg Y3UINID AYILIVE TV JLVISHIAINI  vaTivain
8G°CTI'8LL
85°¢8/'8L1L NOILINL INFWTIOYNT NIdO Qas?d IONIAANIGIANI asoaan
9z°LS1
9g'/2 SMOVNS Sd WYHO0Hd HONNTLOH  HONMILOH
06621 AN Sd WYHO0Hd HONNT LOH HONNTLOH
v£ 991
€991 Slyvd sng Auedwod sng puniboH  nwsng1ooH
09°98%
09°98p SM009 O SM009 dOHANND Jouawno
00°'v.S
00'v.G IFONVNILNIVA 43102 OO0 HOST 14 NOQHOD  s314am09
SO'VEZ
69°G S1¥vd dIND3 IVIA0LSND VdVN AdYVL NIHOS3 VAN
99'8¢el S1yvd Sng VdVYN Ad¥VYL NIHOS3 VdVN
¥Z6 Si¥Vd I1OIHIA IVIAOLSND VdVYN AdHVL NIHDS3 VdVN
9¥'08 S1¥vd I1DIHIA VIAOLSND VdVN AdYVL NIHOS3T VdVN
aNNnd TvaaNIo
MIALL a1 585N uen tuwmﬁ_ pund 22072 Em::mﬂ-oum:m._mtmw uot Losag _.._Bmm paisodun Wd z€:2L 220272110

¢ :abed (1e301qns Jopuaa) Bunsi 9210Au| 100425 Aunwwoy ueueysng 1seg



GG'LE

91'99¢

91°'99¢
000LL
0ooLL
89'vC
89v¢C
00°'v9
00'¥S8
ovele
ov'cie

YV L6
LA A%
00°5.
00°s.
00°00L
00°00t
8£'6£9°S
90°L€6°L
1G°6v8
L1¥00°C
8G'8G8
00°05.°C
000G.°C
00'00S°€
00°005°¢
68°0VZ°L
68°0¥C'L

JUNOLIY SOIOAU]

ML @l desn
¢ .abed

TPQUNN 84D QT TNGooy BUNoaUD 318q P00

S3IddnNs sH

HIVd3d SNG/NVA

B90UBIBIUOD MET |00YOS

S3NddNs W13
FOIAHES 1S3d-NIHDLIM

ONISILY3IAAY/SIDILON 2Indnd

NOILO3dSNI 314

30IAY3S aISVYHIHNd
[eatsAud 104

13s31d
SvO
13s31A/Svo
13s31A/svo

NOILdIYOSANS INVH
dIvd3d 1SI0H

ININFIFIOV dIHSHINLHVY
UORAEs3q
aNN4 TYH3INTID

UORdNSsaq pund gg0g AMenUer-ojg/|eisuss; Uonduossaq UoleEg [pajsoau)

(1e301qns Jopuaa) Bunsi as10Ay]

OTT ALTVIOAAS TOOHDS  93dSoHDS
00 S31vYS SNG T1O0HDS  ssnaoHos
VS VS

NOLVHOdHOD TIIND dy027IND

X-01S34d X01S3dd

JHL ‘SM3AN SMIN3HL

S3IVING3S WHVTV LSTIMAIN UV IVMAIN

SNOIS ¥31STIHONVIN NOISONVIN

MaIpuy MadeUoelN  yanvHOWW

00 HO IAILYHIJO-0D NNIT dOOONNIT
02 IO IAILYHIJO-0D NNIT dOOONNIN
00 110 INALLYHIJO-0OO NNIT JOOONNIT
03 O IAILVYHIJO-0D NNIT dOOONNIT

S|geION IWeY gy ONIWYY

HIVd3d 2 ONIATIM S HISIVH QIEAMSIVILIE

INFWIATIHOV HOINOM  3iovinnr e
SWEN T0PUSA arIopuaA

Nd ¢€:21 22oerelLilo
|0040S Alunwwo) ueueysng 1seg



/6'6¢€
6v°8S
Sy oy
6°98
1968

05°/81

05/81

1999122

19'991°2¢

ov'601

9’601

[44:14°]

19'v92
19'¥9¢

0€°519

0e'sie

£1°08S

€1°085

00'G€8

00'5e8

05°9S
0G°G6S

157981

00'vL
1G°¢/L

00'sct

00'scL

§G°/€

JUNOUWIY S910AU|

MALL ‘Al 1esn
G :abed

TBGUNN 0840 Q1 1UNoo0y Bupaus 31eq 5pauD

S3IddNS S14v aNlI
S3INddNS S1dv AdNI
S3MddNS SLYV ANI
S3IddNS Ndva sng
S3IddNS 9%4d

HIVd3d INFANHLSNI ONVE

INIWTIOHENT NIJO

S3iddnNs ad

sauoyd (180
sauoyd (189

A0QvdOdn svd
JOINGIS HOYNd AIvDIa3an
3VINGTS FIVO NV

S3A0INGES VO

IN3H 20D
SANddNS S1yv ANI

HI2UO0D JBJUIAA 10} ISIuedwoady

Uondusssq
aNN4 TVH3INTO

UCHAN9S8(q pUnd '¢¢0z Aenuep-ojgjjelauss) Uonauosaq Joieg -paisodun

(1e301gns Jopusa) Bunsi ad10Au|

AlddNS 9NIaTiNg dOYHANIM TINELNIM
AlddNS ONIATING dOYHLNIM TNGLNIM
AlddNS ONIATING dOHHINIM TNGLNIM
AlddNsS ONIATNG dOYHINIM TMNGLNIM

A1lddNS ONIATING JOHHLINIM ungLNImM A
ANVJNOD JISNIN LS3IM ISNALSTM

dSO IYYMVY13A LSIM  viaaisam K
249 ALINNINWOD 1HVINTIVM LHVINTVAA
dy1NTi1d0 SN 11308N
dY1NT130 SN T7139sN
SuU| SN BUBlL  oNiISNINVYL
O 2DIAETS ONITTIE INITHIENIL TuganiL
2le) umeT smeq wi| SIAVANIL

LYHOO B HIHSIMS  wHoosIMS

ATddNS ONIGTIM HOIH3dNS  aiamadns D&
AlddNS ONIQT3IM HOIH3dNS  g1amadns
AYVIN ‘HOIGNHDS  AuWWNHOS
SUWiEeN JOpPUSA a1 Jopusp

Wd ¢€2l ¢eozreiino

[00Y2S AUnwiwon ueueyong 1seg



95 €EV'G0C
9G'€E¥'G0C

€V'0.€

6691
86°LC

JUNGCUIY S0I0AU]

AN ‘Al 1esn
g :abed

‘[e10] podey

‘{El0] yoleg

TSqUINNBYD QT unoddYy bubpay) S1Eq Moaud

S3ANdANS S1¥V NI
so|qewnsuod Bunjiompoopa
uonaumseq

[ ERIEENER]
UDRAuSsa(q pund ‘¢z0g Menuer-oigjjeleuay Uonanosaq Uojeg [paisoaln

{(ie30)gns Jopuaa) Bunsi] 9210AU|

ATddNS ONIATIING dOYHLNIM TNTLNIM Xh
AlddNS ONIATING dOYHLINIM unanm

SUIEN JOPUSA Qi Jopusi

WNd ¢€:2l 2eoerel/Lo
100U2S Aunwiwo? ueueysng jseg



00'968'C¢ ‘Je10) Loday
00968'2¢ ‘€101 yoleg

00'96%'S
ONI
00G86'L dILN3O ONINYVYIT HOO0ALNO ONIAIAHNS B ONIYIINIONT QHOIMVED 1oNamvao
ONI
00'LLSE XT1dWOD JILTTIHLY ONIAIAYNS B ONIYIINIONT QHOIMYHD  j9Namvud
00'00%°02
00°00¥°0¢ 13N H31H4vE TIva3asvd OT1 SonS|Yly Uodesg  JivNoovag
00°000°Z
7000002 ONINVIYLS IAN Juf EIp3 0802 VIQ3iN080z
JINOUIY SOIOAU]  FSqUINN YoouD) Q1 Funoody buppaly SIEd SPouD Uogdusssq SUIEN JopUS Qi IopusA
AL 0 2950 IAVS ¥ 13dd Z20c¢ Aenuer-oj/ersusg) uogduosad yojey paisodun Wd LE:21 2202121710

| :obeyg (Ie3o3gns Jopuaa) Bugsr ad10Au| {eoyos Aunuiwo? ueueyong jseq



8C°160'21 ‘|lejoy poday 000 ‘lejol 660} Hoday

8Z°1G0°LL ‘rejo] yojeg 000 ‘[e101 6601 yaleg
N €8'6EL'C paseydind poo4 L€9 0000 000 OLLE 0000 L9
{ind u| B J9SSY/I9SSY JUNOWY [[B1e( 6601 JUNOWVIelIog ] JoIuay) 1500 uonauosaq [ieledg J9gUWINN JUNOJJY JO ey
:31e( yooyo Jagquinp 3oayo :al wnoaoy Buppoayn :adAy oayso | :@ouanbag
00°0 -Junowy 6601} V SMEIS Z20Z/2H/1L0 ®eQqeng  LZ0g/LERL  -ejeq,aol0Au] unBoApiN :uonduosaq
£8'SEL7 ‘Junowry LZLEZL Jaquinp adloAu) laquinN Od *ONI ‘AYIVA SWYVL MIvid WHVHIvHd -Ql Jopusp
N 00°80C sasuadxg say10 €9 0000 000 01 L€ 0000 L9
N 969 sa|iddng |elsuan 819 0000 000 OLLE 0000 L9
N 6£'6.6'Cl paseydind pood L €9 0000 000 0L 1€ 0000 L9
Iin4 uj Be[ 185sVy/19ssY JUnowy 1190 6601 unowy |iejag © ([ Jauad 1soD 13quunN JUNOJJY Jo Heyd
:@leq @8y Jaquing 3oayon Al o2y Buoayo :adA] 3ooyn | :esusanbag
00°0 Junowy 6601 Vv SNeIS Z20Z/2L/l0 Blegang  (ZOZ/LEZL  :9-(] @dloAuy) $394/s9)ddns/pooS :uondussag
58°ZSY'vi ‘Junowy LZLEZL Jaquinp ad10AU] JaquinN Od SY3IHLOHE NILIVIN 1OYg1MVYIN :qlJopuap
N 09°¢ot , paseyadind poo4 1€9 0000 000 0L L€ 0000 L9
find uj Be[ 195SV/IesSY JUNoWlY (€190 6601 JUNOWV lEd dl J2Jua) 150D uondudse( (iersqg J9quInN JUNOJDY JO PUBYD
:9)eq oayn J1aquun Yoayo af Wno22y Buryoay) :adhy yoeyn | @ouanbag
00°0 unowy 6601 V SNelS 2Z02/ZL/L0 ®egeng 1Z0Z/LEfZL  1e1eq 3210Au| pesig :uonduoseq
09°29t Junowy LZLEZ] adquinN adtoAau| JquinN Od VSN S3IaMva ogwig IMvaauig -at Jopusp
:S8210AU| asuadxg JIESA |2OSIH JO puUg Q| JOpUaA pIeD ypain 2202/L0 Yiuop Buissasosy Zzoz Aenuer - ssoloau| uonuinN  :uondunsaq ysjeg
O™ ‘Al tesn Zzoz Menuer - sadjoau] uoninN WV G€6 2202/L0/10
| :abey l1eyaq - Bunsiy as10Au|

[00Y2g Alunwiwo) ueueyong 1seg
—~



00°06

0o'0s

o000zt

00°'s8

0058

o0o0Le

00°'se

00°s8

:Sao10AU| 9sUSdXT (B34 [e3S1d JO pug

oA dls=sn
| 8beyg

00°06 JWNOWY 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/6Z/LL @1IBgeng  LZ0Z/SZ/LL  =1ed 2910AUj

Junowry LZeZLL “‘.OQE:Z 3JI0AU| JaqunN Od
N 00°0S 0005

= E] J9SSY/33SSY JUNOWY jejaQ 6601 UNoWwy 'eeg  Q Jaidan 1500

’ 1Z0Z/62/LL @B %3y | 8/0El eqump yosyn Tz

0005 ‘Wnowy 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0g/6Z/LL @e@and  LZ0Z/CZ/LL  91eq 2010AY|

JJunowy L1ZEZLL 12quUINN 3210AU| laquinN Od

N 000z} 00°0Z1L

RER] BBL 155svy/195sY WUNOWV [1E19Q 6601 JUNoUWy (e38g  QI81ue)) 1500

120Z/62/LL  ©18Q ¥2ayD LROEL JSQUINN %23yD z

00°0Z1 3unOWY 6601 dd SMEIS LZ0Z/6T/LL @1le@ang  LZ0Z/EZ/LL  i23eq So10AY|

Junouwry 12€Z1LL adquIny 8210AU| JaquinN Od
N 0068

=T} De{ j95SV/39SSV JUNOWIY [[E15( 660} JUnoWy leled Q[ Jaiua) 1809

L20Z/0E/L L 3ieq Wo2YyD GBOEL UBqUINN YOy z

00°0 JunoWY 6601  dd SMBIS LZOZ/OT/LL @legang  1Z0Z/6Z/LL  191BQ S0I0AU|

unouwry LZ6ZLI Jaquunp adioAu| t1aquinN Od
N 0058

ing uj DE[1955y/4SS5V JUNoWY 18150 660} JUNOWY 818G Q[ 91090 1805

120Z/6L/1L  181eQ ¥oaYD €/0SL _qUINN %03yD z

00°0 UNOWY 6601  dd SMEIS [ZOZ/BL/LL @egeng  1Z0Z/8L/LL 218 =910y

aunoury LZ8LLL aaquinyy 9310AU] JaquinN Qd

N 0001E

=g b1 15551955V JUNoUly 6750 6601 NOWV TR QIous) 1595

L20Z/ET/LE  =1ed WosyD G/0EL Jequinp payd ) z

00'0 UNOWY 6601 dd SMElS L20Z/EZ/LL @edand 1Z0Z/ze/LL  9ie( 2910AU|

Junowry LZETI-6Z4L IAaquINp ad10AU| :39qunN Od
N 00°G8 0o0s8

mJa Be] 1955y/195sY JUnowry (1190 6601 WNoWy ieled (] J910a0 1500

1Z02/08/1 L 131Bq Wo8UD ¥R0EL  UagQUINN o8yD z

008 uNowy 6601  dd SNIBIS LZOZ/OS/LL egend  |Z0Z/62/L1 918 S910AUl)

Junoury LZ6ZLL uaquny 32j0Ay| usquiny Od
N 0068 0068

mao bE1 1555V/955Y JUNoWY [[E150 6601 WNOWV eRed g1 397085 1509

LZoz/eL/LL  121BQ IBYD TI0EL  IBQUINN HHOBYD ) z

0068 JUNOWY 6601  dd SMBIS 120Z/6L/L1 @B@eNg  |Z0Z/BL/LL :91BQ 9910AU)

unowy Leg8LiL llaqunp 22(0AU| JaguwinN Qd

‘Gl JopuaA pUed Hpasy

120Z J2quiano - sadloau| eixg Ainmoy

He3Q - bugsi aog0Au)

12ozikL oy Buisssooly

tzrgzsiL - |eryo Buiisaipy SW - uonduassq
ALSNY ""W3AaW 1SNAIAINW Al 10pU3A

Lerezii L - 1ewo buipsaimy S S¥€ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 LT
uonRdussaq rerea JSqUINN WNGCI2V JO Pedy
T yoayp :adAl yosyn | :3%uanbasg
LZIEZ/LL - 1ePO Buipsaipn SW cuonduassq
MORLYd ‘NIYHONOT YLVAONOT :al Jopusp

Q| Junoady Bunjosyn

LZIEZ/LL - [BRUYO (IEqiRdSEg-© St€ 0099 026 00F L 0000 1.2
UoRGUISEq e g J3QUWNN JUNOIDY §° Pey]y
¥oaug adi| ypayo L :=douanbag
L2IEZ/LL - enwo jleqiseg-9 uonduasag

30r ‘sg8a19 Jorggio :qiJopuap

Q[ unoooy Bupoayn

LZIBZ/LL - J3USAH ") - [eoYO 99-9 SN L6€ 0088 026 00%| 0000 ¢

UORBUSS3Q [ErRqg J2quinN JUR035Y 0 VeUD

¥o8YD :adAy osy)n | :souanbag

LZ/6Z/L | - 13USSH ") - [BrRwO 99-0 S uondudsag
ONN4 IYH3IN3IO ONM4NID -al Jopuap

Q1 Wunoodoy Buppayn

LZI8L/LY - IBusay M - (B0 99-9 SW 16€ 0099 026 00Y i 0000 LZ

Oondussaqg eyaq J3qWNN }Unaady Jo ey

sy adAj yosyn | sousnbag

LZ/8HLL - 18usay "y - [eRWO gg-9 S uonduasaq
GNNd TVH3aIN3D GNN4AN3O “Qf 10puap

dl unoasy Bunpsyn

e yoog - abuey) 8198104 0G6 00¥L 0000 LC
TonduSsaq 18150 TBqUINN JUN03oY JO BT
¥oayD :adAl ysay)n | souenbag
Jed yoog - abuey) -uonduossaq
HSVO-8SD SNIZLLID Al Jopuap

(] N0y Bupjoayy

LZ/6Z/L L - |BIoO |[eqidXseg-9 SN SPE 0099 0Z6 00F1 Q000 1Z
uonduoseq 1e’a J3qUMN WNo30Y o Uey
Way) adA] yoayn | :@ouanbag
bZ/62/LL - [BIPLIO ([EqiaYseg-O SIY uondusseq
og ‘Aavyg 08AQVYg :dl Jopuap

Q1 wnoooy Sunjoayn

1281/ 1 - [eRWO |[eqieyseg-9 SN S 0099 0Z6 00¥L 0000 LC
Uonamssq nerg T3qUNN U059y 10 Ueq)
Y9yD adA] 3oy | :@ousnbag
LZ/8L/11 - 1BYO leEqadseEg-O SW uonduosaq

og ‘Aqvyg 08Aavyg  af Jopuap

120¢ JaquiaaoN - seaionau; enx3 Anoy  cuopdussaq yoajeg

:dl wno22y Bupjoayn

NV €56 1202/10/21
100yas Ayunwiwo? ueueysng jse3

SHA O+ 1CoE IR N YT w(



G8'99L'¥ ‘1ejoy poday 00002 ‘|eloL 6601 Hoday
GB'95L'Y ‘|ejo] yajeg 00007 J|Iejol 6601 Yoleq
9)31dwodu) N S8
ajerdwooyy) . N 00ZhL
34 Be] 1855V/1SSY JUNOLIY 8190 660+ JUNOWY (B30  (f 351057 1500
LZ02/6Z/LL  ®1BQ ¥P8YD £J0EL  J3gWInN ¥23yD z
000 JunoWwy 6601  dd ‘SMEIS |20Z/6Z/LL Be@end  LZ0Z/6Z/LL  @1eQ S910AU|
S1°0SL “unowy 6ZLLLZ0Z USquUINN 8210AU| vi20-ZZ :requnN Od
a19|dwoou| N S8
RE el N GETY8'L
inda be] 19551555V JUNouWly [e150 6601 JUnouly ieieg  Qf 191057 1500
LZ0Z/6LLL  81BQ ¥o2UD PZ0€L  U3quInN ¥oayd Z
000 Junowy 660k dd ‘SMEIS 120Z/6L/LL @legand  LZ0z/6lL/LL :21eq 2210AL]
oLIse't unouwy £0968Z611 URqUINN 8310AU| 6020-2Z tlequny Od
NOOOLE 000k
3] De[ 185SV/1555V JUNOWY €190 6601 JUNOlY e/ad  Qf J21aD 1500
120z/ee/LL  ©leq ¥o3uD €80€L  JaguinN %o8y) 4
000FL Junoury 6601 dd ‘SMIEIS 120Z/62/LL B18Q3NQ  LZ0Z/SE/LL  Sleq ad10AU)
00011 Junowy LZEZLL USqQUINN 3210AU| daquinN Od
NOOOLL 000LL
g Dej 1255V/33SSY UNoWY 12750 660} JUNOWY leveq (] 181057 1505
L20Z/6ZILL  81eq ¥oayD 280€L  U=qunN oay)d Z
00°0LL-unowy 6601 dd-'SMBIS 1Z0Z/6Z/LL- @) ana  LZ0Z/Se/LL  eieQ S910AU}
00°0LL Junowy LZEZLL BqUINN 39{0AU| daquinN Od
N 0005 00'0S
nd be[ 19S5VAaSSY oWy (18990 6601 WNOWV B8 Q[ 18108 1505
120262711 Bleq %oaud 080EL lJaqunN o3y) Z
00705 JunoWy 6601 dd ‘SMeIS LZ0Z/6Z/LL ele( ana  1Z0Z/CZ/LL  9ieQ 2210AU|
00705 unowy I2EZLL sequuny aoi0Auf JaquinN Od
a33(duoouy N 00°68¢
ind4j BE] 1355V/195SY JUnoWy €90 6601 WUNOWG 815G Q11055 1565
LZ0T/ET/iL BBQ oayD 9/0€L U_quINN %93y z
0070 JURoWY 6601 dd SMEIS LZOZ/EZ/LL @B ANA  LZOZ/E/SD 1R S210AY]
00°58¢ aunoury 1642511006 43qQUNN 2210AU| $0Z0-ZZ U9qumnpy Qd
N 0006 0006
m3 DB J3SSY/ISSSY JUNOWY 18350 6601 JUNOUIY )80 ] 15,087 1507
L20Z/62Z/t L @1'Q Mo3yD 6/0€L UBQWINN YoayD Z
O @1 48N 12Qg J2qWanoN - SadloAu| eNx3 Ajagoy
T 8teq H1elaq - 6ugsi astoay|

. Buiddwg 819 010Z 055 00¥L 0000 1T

spleg Yo 819 0104 056 00¥L 0000 2

uoRdussaq eeg JSqWNNIUN033Y J0 PeuD

‘gl Wnoody Bunpayn ¥oayp :adAy yoay) | :@2usnbag

spied dudsg :uondudsaqg

didOS HLIM dOHS dIMOSdOHS “al 40puap

Buddiys 819 010/ 0G6 00¥1 0000 12
spied Wo 8190104 056 00vE 0000 1T
Uogausssq nesa 1SqUINN WNO33Y 1O HeqD
M8y adAy sosyn L :souanbag
19s1z1pUng pred Yo uopduasaq

di¥OS H1IM JOHS diHISdOHS Qi Jopuap

1 unoooy Bunoayd

LS/EULL - [BRWYO eqidiseg-9 Sv€ 0098 026 00VL 0000 LZ

UoNousEaq e TSqUNN JUR039Y 10 VEGD

NIBYD BdAt xoayn { :souanbag
LCIETILL - [BRYO lleqieyseg-9 uondussag
ANAYM ‘HIINHOS NAVMNHOS :qi Jopuap

a1 Junosoy Buppayn

LZ/EC/LL - [BIOWO [feqiavsego St€ 0098 0Z6 0071 0000 L2
uonaussaq e@qg JSqUINN JUN0J2Y J0 Heq)
%934y adA ] oayn | :@ouanbag
LZieeiL ) - [ernyo lleqiayseg-9 uoRduosa( -
SINN3A “¥31avs NN3IQIavs :qi Jopusp

Q{ Wwnoa2y Bunioayy

LZ/ET/LL - 1eyO Bupsaip sw S¥€ 0098 026 00vL 00CO L2
uonaussaqg rereqg I8quWnN JUNG33Y JO HEq)
¥oay) :adA) yoayn | :souanbag
L2/ges L - [eyo Buisaipg sy suonduasaq

N3g ‘T190 N3Ig3T190 :g| Jopuap

‘4l Wnoody Bupjoayn

diyssaquialy A9100S JouoH [euopeN 668 €10/ 0S6 00¥| 0000 12
[T EE=Tg N [[=5ETq] 1SqUINN TUNG29Y JC Ueq)
Mosyy adAj yoayn | :®ausnbag
diyssaquispy SHN ‘uondussaq

SHN/JSSVYN SHNJSSVN :Ql fopuap

:al wnodoy Bunoayn

LzZreeiL L - [eryo bupsaipy s S¥E 0099 026 00¥1 0000 LZ
UoRamosaq ewlsq JequINN JUGCo0Y G Peqy
M28uD adA] soayn L :@ouenbeg

‘gt 1uno2ay Bupjosyn

WY €56 Lzoz/Lo2L
{ooyas Auunwiwe) veueyong jseg

S 9 402 180 Vg Wiy i MO



000 Junowy 6601 dd ‘SMEIS Lz0Z/0Z/ZlL @egana  120zZ/LL/zL  :81eq edloau| LZILLITL - (B0 (ileqiedseg tuonduosaq

00'sZL unowy 122121 Jequnp ad10Auy uaquinN Od INVd ‘NYWIOVH INV4IOVH :Ql Jopusp
N 00°06 00°06 LZ/L/Z) - B0 lleqiovseq S¥E 0099 026 00V 0000 12
ma BE] 1855V195SY JUNOWY IE180 6601 JUNOWY [B180  Qf J81U80) 1500 UoRdssaq ERa TBqUINN 1UN035Y 10 Teq)
1202/60/2) @ea Yosyy ZLIEL UAqUINN %98YyD ’ Z :Qlunoooy Buppdayy . €y :adk] %oeyo | :9ousnbag
0006 JUNOWY 6601  dd SMIEIS 1Z0Z/60/ZL O18d ONA  LZ0Z/L0/ZL :S1eq S910AY| LZ/rZ) - 1ePWO [feqyeyseg uondusseq
0006 ‘Junowy LZLZL :JaquinN 3210Au| “equinN Od LY3F0Y ‘IMVUD IGOUMVYD Al JOpUsA
N 00'S8 00'58 bZ/LLIZ1 - [BIOIO lleqaNseg S¥E 0099 0Z6 00%1 0000 LZ
3 bE[ 1955V/195sY TUNOWY 18190 6601 JUNOWY E19d  Q1J91Ua)) 1500 uondiossq eea ToqUINN JUM0o0Y 16 TeD)
1202/02Z/2L ®1ed ¥99uD 6LISL JAgUINN 3jo8YD Z :@lunodoy Bunjoay) ¥99yp :adAl %8yo L :ouanbag
00'8 UNOWY 6601  dd ‘SMBIS 1Z0Z/0Z/Z) @eaana  LZOZ/LL/ZL :S1ed Sdi0Au| LZILLIZ) - [BoWO (leqiesseg uondudseq
00's8 Junowy LZLLZL 4aqunp ad10AU] uequIny Od 1H390¥ ‘IMVAD IHOUMVYD :Ql J0PUaA
N 0006 0006 L2Z/11/Z) - 11O (legieyseg S¥E 0099 0Z6 00% | 0000 +Z
ma o DEL 195SV/o5SY JUnoWY (1150 6607 JUNOWv Ieled Qi J8juas 1500 Tondiosag 1esa T3qUINN JUN050Y J0 PEGD
LZ0Z/0E/ZL B1Eq %99YD 9ziEl UaquIN 3o8yD Z :Qlunodoy Bunpayd ¥oyo :adk) doayn | :eouanbag
00°06 UNOWY 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/0S/ZL @A ANa  1ZOZ/LL/ZL :91E( 8910AU] LZ/LLIZL - 1RO leqiadseg :uondudseq
00°06 ‘Junoury . LZLIZ) Jaqunp 3d10Au| usquiny Od _ ‘ AN3D ‘IMVIO INTOMVYIO :al Jopusp
N 0008 0008 , LZILLIZ) - (B0 (leqievseq S¥€ 0099 0Z6 00¥L 0000 L2
(=R BE] JoSSY/o58Y JUNOWIY (18190 6601 JUNOWY EIPA Q) 191050 1500 UCRON5SaQ e1ed T3qUNN UNG35Y 10 HEYD
LZ0Z/0S/ZL :91BQ 303UD IZIEL JBquINN 3j08yD Z 01 uno2dy Bunioayd ¥9yg :adA1 ¥23yo | :eouenbag
0008 JuUnoWyY 6601  dd SMIEIS LZOZ/OE/ZL @ed ond  LZ0Z/LL/ZL :ejeq o2ioAy| L2/LLZL - 1B1OO leqieyseq :uonduosaq
00°08 Junowy LZLiZL Jaquiny as10Au| :laquinN Od TIVHOIN ‘aIVHIDZLId HONNZLIS QI JopusA
N0O'GLL 00°GLL LZILLIZL - [B19WO0 lleqiseg S¥E 0099 026 00F} 0000 L2
LER] BEL155SV/ISSSY JUNOWY (1190 6601 JUMOWYEea G I81050 1505 , Tonansseq ERa : .
120Z/0Z/ZL 91BQ %284 8LISL JaqUINN 3oayD Z @l unoooy Bunioays #8YD adAL ¥osuo | :eouanbeg
00'GL) Junowy 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/0Z/ZL @eaang  1zZ0zZ/LLZL :S¥ed S910Auj VZILLIZ - 1BIOO llegiovseg :uonduosag
00°SLL Junowry LZL1IZL oquin 9910Auj| :J9quinN Od NHOC ‘UVNOAQ NHOMYOAQ :Ql Jopuap
N 00002 ABM 800D - abueyd 819 0129 016 00¥} 0000 L2
=] be] 1955V/35SSY Junowy (€150 6607 WUNOWV leled  Qf 191u9) 1509 uondusssq iered JSqWINN JUN035Y JO Peq)
1202/02/21 :918Q %99yD LLLEL  JAquInN sjoayD Z :alwnosoy Bunpayy #eyp adAl Wosyo L :eousanbag
00°0 JUNOWY 6601 dd SNIBIS 1Z0Z/0Z/Z) ©¥e@ena  Lz0zZ/0Z/Zl :21ed 9010Au| MEAR 800D - sbueyD :uondussag
00°00Z Junowy 12022} :13quINN a210Au| z3quInN Od HSYD-9SD SN3ZILID Qi J0pusp
NOO0OLL 00°0}1 : LZ/LIZL - [BOYO leqieseg S¥E 0099 026 00¥1 0000 LZ
[ BE] 15557955V JUNOWY Ie)oQ 6601 JUNCWY [B19G G 191085 1500 Tonanosaq 1esa T3qUINN U055 Jo TEUD
1202/60/ZL 21BQ %2940 OLISL JBqUINN 303yD Z :Qiuncooy Bunjosyg %Y :adAy ¥oayo } :®ousnbeg
00°0L} Junowy 6601  dd ‘SMEIS 1Z0Z/60/ZL dled ang  1Z0Z//0/ZL 9ieq ad10au| L2ILZ) - B0 lleqiaxseg cuonduosag
00°0LL unowy L2LZy 49quInp as10Au| JRquINN Od NISHOD ‘QYVONNYNE SNOONNYE :al Jopusp
s3210AU] Bsuadx] Jea ) {e9S!4 JO pug (4 J0pusA pied ypain 1202721 Yoy Buissasoid 1202 Jaquieda(q - sa010AU| BNXT ANAIDY  (uonduosaq yseg
O :al sesn 1202 12qui3oa( - saojoau| enx3 Aliaioy WY ZL:LL Z20Z/E0/10

| :abey tie3aq - Gupsi) 2910Au] {ooyds Anunwuwio) ueueyong jseg

o~ —



-19°€68'2

00°001

00'szL

00°0C1L

00°66¥

00°s8

00°SLL

O™ Al 88N
Z :abed

nd v

aJunowy

nd4u

unowy

N4 uy

Junowy

ng uj

;unowy

leutd
lind u

Junowy

ind uj

unowy

UE]

unowy

g uj

N 19°€58'Z Jled yoog onseloyss 819 810/ 066 00¥L 0000 |2

BB1 1555V/195SV JUNoWV [EJeQ 6601 JUNoWV ejed QI Joua) 1500 Uonanasaq eeq TSOUNN 1UN0o9y Jo HEYD)

L20z/0z/eL  8keqd ¥98yd GZIEL UaquInN Yo8YyDd € QI 3unodoy Burdsy) ¥oayg adAy dosyd | :@ousnbeg

00°0 Wnowy 6601  dd SNEIS 1g0Z/02/2L ‘@eaQana  Lg0Z/SL/Zl :91eq 9d10Au]| Jie4 yoog anse|oyss uonduoseq
dEZS69L0SAA :4qUINN 3910AU| : HequinN Od ; SL - SHIV4 MOO0g JILSVIOHOS HIV4OHOS :qi Jopuap

N 00°00} 00001 L2/LZL - 1eDyO (legieyseg GtE 0099 0Z6 00¥1 0000 2

Be] 15SSVy/1esSY Junowy Ieed 6601 JUNoWy [lejed QI Jausa) 1500 uondidsa(q 1eeqg TequUNN JUNOISY JO HeuD

1202/60/21 :®jeq %o°YD €LLEL  J9quinN ¥o3Yyo Z q1unoooy Bupppsyn ¥oayg :adh) yoeyo | :@ousnbag

00°00L JUnOWY 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/60/Z) @edena  1Z0Z/L0/C) :1ed adionu) LZ/L/2 - [ePwO lleqieyseq uonduoseq
12221 requiny 8d10Au| :aquinN Od IYVINYF ‘S31d33d VIWVId33d Qi 10pusp

N 00621 LZ/L1iZ) - @94 Au3 Bupsaipy 018 0099 026 00¥L 0000 L2

Ge] 15SSV/iSSSY Junouly leleq 6601 JUNOWV leldd {1 Jeue) 1500 tondimosa( era JSqUINN N0V Jo Heuy

120Z/02/21  :@1eQ Yoey)d €ZIEL  I9quInN %99y Z :a1unoddy Bupisayn ¥oayo edAL osyo 1 :eouenbag

000 WNOWY 6601 dd SMEIS |1Z02/0Z/Z1L @eaana  LZoe/Li/gl :@yeq 8210y 12/L L2 - 384 Au3 Buipsaipn uopdussaq
1ZL1Z) JaquinN a10AuL :aqWnNN Od TJOOHOS HOIH NONY3A "L NONMIALIN :QtJ0pusp

N 00021 00°0ZL 12/L7Z) - [enwo |rgidseg S¥E 0099 026 00¥1 0000 12

Be] 19sSV/1555Y. JUNoWy [1eted 6601 .JUNOWY le18d Q1 o) 1500 . Gonamoseq [eleq - TSqQUInN JUNOJ3Y J0 FEQD

120Z/60/C)1 :@1BqQ %924 LLLEL 8quinN y28yDd : Z QI wunodoy Buposyy 3oayp adAL yoayo 1 :eousnbag

00°0Z} Junowy 6601  dd ‘SNIeIS LZ0Z/60/Z) @¥edend  1Z0Z/L0/ZL :1eq SoloAU| L2/LZL - 1B flegqidseg ‘uondussag
4221 4aquinN 3d10AU| uaquinN Od NVAY ‘YIATN NVAYTAIW :d| Jopusp

N 00°'66% uonduosqns sieISoPIN-ssogle 018 0099 026 00¥1 0000 LZ

Be[ 19SSVY/1eSSY JUNoWy [Ie1ed 660} UNOWY [Bjog 1 Jo1ua)) 1500 Uonduass( 1ered TequINN Junca9Y Jo HEUD

120Z/60/21 :81eq 224D SLLEL uUaquInN o3yo Z Q| wnoooy Bunjoayn yoayo :adAy osyo } :@duanbag

00°0 unowy 6601 - dd SMEIS 1202/60/2) ‘@@ end  +202/22/80 1BQ 9010AU] uondiosqng sIEISOaPIA uondussaq
£S¥/6G009 :1oquINN 2910AU| €£20-2Z 4AquInN Od 077 ssogie SSOELVIN Q1 Jopusp

N 00'68 0058 L2/LLIZL - [BIOYO ([egiadseg S¥E 0099 026 00¥L 0000 1T

BE[ 195SV/1555Y Junowv iiejed 660F JUNoOWY 8390 Q1 1910e)) 1500 uondussaq neeq ToqUINN WUN093Y Jo Hey)

L20Z/0Z/2) 81eq %93y ZTZIEL UaquINN ¥oauYH Z :Al13unocooy Bunjoayd yoayo adAl oayDd L :@ousnbeg

00°G8 Junowy 6601 dd SMIBIS 1Z02/0Z/2) @leaena  LZOZ/LL/ZL  :@1eq 9910Au) LZ/LLZL - [ePWO (leqiiseq uoRdinssg
122121 dequinp 8d10Au) uequini Od NILSNV “Y3anH 1SNv3AanH :ql 10puap

NOO'GLL 00°GHL L2/LLIZ\ - [BIOWO [{eqiddiseq S¥E 0099 026 00+ 0000 |2

BE1 195Sy/1555Y JUNOWY 118 6601 JUNOUly iEfeq 4l Jouay) 1500 UoRdu3saq 1e1eg J3qUWINN JUNod5Y §0 PeyD

1202/0Z/21 =1eq Mo9yd LZIEL  Jaquin 93y)H Z Qi wnodoy Buppayn 3oayg :adAy yoayo 1 @ousnbeg

00°GLL Junowy 6601  dd SMEIS LZ0Z/0Z/el @eaana  120Z/LLZL  18)eq 9910Au| LZ/LLIT) - |ePwo lleqidseg ‘uonduosaqg
1Z21Z1 BquinN 8d10Au] usquiny Od SRIHD "Wanva13aI3H IMHOAIFH :al J0pusp

N 00621 ) L/LLiZ) - [B19O Hegiaseq S¥€ 0099 0Z6 00¥1 0000 L2

Be] 1o55v/19SSY JUnoWy Ie¥2Q 6601 JUnowy 1ejog  {j Jaus)) 1503 uondiusss(q 1erea J3qQUINN JUNOJ35Y 10 HeqD

120Z/02/2) :®1eq o2y Ozlel uaquinp Yooyo Z :Qlunosdy Bupoayd 3oayg adAy osyo | :eousnbag

120Z Jaquiada(] - s8910AU| BNXT AAROY
{1e1e@ - Bugsi a910Au|

-

WV ZL:L) 2202/E0/L0
[ooyds Aunwwos usueyong jseq



187252

/8225'L

00°021

00°sLL

00°SL

00'SLL

00°sCL

9z 08l

o™ ‘dl 9sn
¢ :abed

‘[e101 uodoy 00°G9V'L ‘lejo] 6601 Hoday

‘2301 yoleg 00'S9¥t ‘|E10L 6601 Yoieg
N 000zt 00021 L2/LZL - (B0 [leqidsed G¥€ 0099 0Z6 0%+ 0000 12
m3ap Be[ 1955v/1es5Y JUNOWY I1E}8d 6601 JUnowy ejed Gl J9)ua0 1500 Gopdussaq eReg TSqUinN JUNo20Y 10 Heq)
1202/60/Z1 :818Q 934D PLICL USquINN %9849 Z Qi unosdy Buosyn Yooy :adAy yoayj I :sdousnbeg
000zl JUnoWy 6601l dd SNIEIS L20Z/60/CL @edenag  1Z0Z/L0/Z) 1eq 9d10au| LZ/LIT) - 1epwo |jedieYseg uoidudoseg
Junowy LZLZ1 4aquinN ad10Aul 13quinN Od AWIHIr ‘YH3Z IUIrYHIZ QI Jopuap
NOO0'GLL 00'GLL LZ/LLIZL - [BIDWO lleqievseg S¥€ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 L2
g Be] 1555V/185SY JUnowy [leled 660} JUNOWY Heled  df J91us)) 1500 uonduosaq Iered
1202/0€/2L  @1eq ¥o8yD 0SSl 18quInp YO8y Z :a13unoody Buppaayn yoayp :edA] 3osyd |l :odousnbag
00'Gll JUNOWY 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/0S/ZL @1eaana  LZOZ/LifgL :31eq 9910Au)| LZ/L LT\ - 12O lleqiyseg uonduossq
unowy 1ZLLZL equinp adtoAu| 1oquinN Od YOLSY ‘SWVITIIM OLSVT1IM Q) Jopuap
N 0062 1zZ/efel - Anu3g Bumsaipa spio 018 0099 026 00¥) 0000 LT
=] BB 1555V/185SY JUnowy [le1ed 660} JUNOWY 8190 Q1 Jous) 1500 uondmssaq fered J3qUINN JunoddY o PelD
120Z/02/Z1 :21Bq X28YD vZIEL UoquNN o3y Z :Qlunodoy Bupdey) %oayo :adhy yoeyo I :edouanbag
000 ‘JUNOWY 6601  dd :SMEIS |20Z/0Z/Zl :®1eaeana  120z/L0/Z)L :31ed 8dIoAu| Lererel - Anu3g Bupssipy spo uondusseq
‘Junowry LZEZL equINN 8210AU| u43quINN Od TTOOHIS HOMH MOOYTTIHS-ATIIAVM SHYSIAVM :ai J0pusp
NO0'GLL 006 12/LLIZ) - [BWO llegieyseg S¥€ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 LT
mau BE] 15553355V WINoWY [lejed 6601 JUNOWY Bjod Q1 J181U9D) 1500 uonaussaq (erRea TSQUINN WUN053Y 16 HEqD)
1202/0€/21  81eq ¥28uD 6ZLEL USqUINN Y29UD , Z Ql1unodoy Bupjosy) %9y :adA[ oay) | :oouanbag
00°GLL unowy 6601  dd SMEIS 1Z0Z/0S/ZL @eaana  LZoz/LL/ZL  21eq 9d10Ay| 12V 11T} - [e1oWO flegidyseg uonduossQq
Bunowy 1ZLLZL Haquuny ad10Aul equInN Od WV “T1394dNVI-4aNYNL WVYONYNL Q) Jopusp
N 0062} 00521 LZ/LLT) - [BIOWO lleqiexseq G¥E 0099 026 00%L 0000 1T
g aj Gel 1955v/j95sV JUNOWVY 1180 660} JUNOWY lejleq Q1 J9jus) 1500 Uonauassq le18q TSqUINN JUN633VY JO Heyd
LZ0Z/0E/ZL  8jeq %oaud 8ZLEL UoquInNN d8YDH Z 1diunoody Buppsy) ¥oay9 :edA| 308y { :@ousnbeg
00'GZ} uUnoWY 6601  dd ‘SMIEIS 120Z/0S/ZL @.egang  1zZoZ/LL/ZE :ejed ddloau| LZ/LLZL - ey lleqiayseg uoydusssq
Junowy LZLizl equin ad10Au| usquinN Od L4IFOY “¥r ‘HLINS J90ULINS Qi J0pudp
N 9Z'08LZ spieD duog 219 610/ 056 00¥1 0000 12
inaa B8] 1955y/3555V JUNOWIV 12}od 6601 JUnowy [Bj)ag QI J8jUs) 1500 TUonansss(q eeq J3qUINN JUNGO3Y JO Hey)
L2ozZ/EL/Z) @¥eq %oayo 9LIEL  UBqUIAN 98YD . Z 'al3junodoy Bupposyn ¥y adA1 yoayn 1 :oousnbeg
000 Wnowy 660F dd SMEIS LZ0Z/SL/Zl @l’aeana  LZ0Z/ShiZl :S1ed S210Au] spsed duog :uondussaqg
Junowy PLGETS611 JaquINN 3d10AU| H2quinN Od dI¥OS HLIM dOHS dI¥OSdOHS :qj Jopusp

1202 12qWa03(] - SI0I0AU| BRXT AJAROY
I1e12q - Buns asioaul

——

WV ZL:L L 2202/€0/40
Jooyss Ayunwwios) ueueyong jseq

——



0029t

cr'osy

0S°CLL

00°LS

00°09

00'Le

00°'S5LL

00°GL

O™ “al sesn
| :abed

1$3210AnU| asuadx3 Jes [B9si 0 pul]

00°0 Junowy 6601 v Snielg Zc0Z/cl/i0 slegena  ZZ0Z/Li/L0  8jeq 3dloau]

unoury ZZLLL J2qunN as1oAy| Jaquiny Od
N Zvosy
=R - DBl 1555¥/19ssY JUnolly [[B1eQ 6601 JUNOW Bl2d @i o) 1500
’ " :m1eq ¥oauD ' -Jaquinp 09y ’
00°0 junoury 6601 VY snels ¢cocreiL/ito ®eqgang 1202/20/10 =1 8010AU|
Junouwy LZZ) :lequnp a910AU| :laquinN Od
N 0s¢CLL
TRER] BEL 1955V/185SY JUNouly [1e19Q 6601 JUnowy eed al LBua) 1s0)
:21eQ YI9YD JBquIN o8y
00°0 unowy 6601 v SnI.)S 2202/2L/Lo ®eq eng 1202/80/C1 81 aoloAu|
Junowy 1Z80Z| :19QWINN 3I10AU| wJsquinN Od
[euld N 00°LS
fing uj Be] 18S5y/3855Y JUNOWY 1838 6601 Junouly [e1ag al 1[u=) 180D

Bjeq o840
v SNIEIS ZZ0Z/ZH/L0 9teq eng

Jagquin oayo

00°0 unowy 6601 L2oc/ie/cl  ‘=eq eoloaul

unowy 62910221z Jaquiny 3310Au| Tzz0-2z 4equinN Od
N 0009
mIa BE[ 1955V/555Y JUNOUIY TIETod 6601 JUNOWY BP0 Q191080 1500
a1eq %I9y9 J3quInN 3o8yo
00°0 Junowy 6601 Vv SMeIS 22022L/io ®eqgang 220¢/.0/10 81eq ad1oau|
‘Junoury 221 12quiny ad10Au| :JaquinN Od
N 00'Le
[UEL] BE] 1o55V9ssY UNoU 18190 6601 JUNOWV 8180 QT 381080 1500
‘ajeq o9yo 42qUINN %08y
00°0 unouny 6601 VY smelg 2202/2L/L0 @jeq ang ¢202/0L/L0 :®eq soloAu]
Junowy 22011 :19quinN 9910AU| aquinN Od
NOO'GLL 00'SL1
[ERY) BB 1955V/155SY JUNOWY (16780 6601 JUNOWV [B180 QT 191080 1500
:?1e@ YoayD JaquInN oayo
00°GL1 unouny 6601 v ‘'smeys 220c/eL/Llo ®eqang ¢202/L0/L0  ®1eq sdloau]
‘junowy ZZ.L1 1dquinp adtoAu| JaquinN Od
N 00°GL
=] Be 1955Y/8SSY JUNOWY 1E190 6601 JUNOWY IB180 Gl 191UsD) 1500
‘a1eq %¥98yoD JRqUINN o8y
00°Q Junow/ 6601 V 'smels 2coc/ici/Lo @easana  22oc/c0/10  :ejeq 90loAuf
Junowy ZZEL 13quUNpN 9910AU| JaquinN Od

Q| JopusA PIED UPaID

2202 Arenuer - sa2i0aU| Aoy

11e39Q - Bunsty 8d10AU|

‘@l Junoooy Burayn

@} Junoddy Buiyosyn

@l Junodoy Buosyd

:dl JuUno2y Buosyn

:al unoaoy Bupoayn

2202/10 Yo Buissasoid

duj oisniy Aquy - punyay uondussaqg
HSIHL ANV NOYVY M00D OYVYVHOO0D Al JOpuap %

210)S pa24 - saddng
Gonanssaq eyeg

819 G102 056 001 0000 LZ

JSQUINN JURG35Y JO HEUD

:adA] osyD | :e2usnbag

210]1g paad - sanddng :uonduosaqg
S3ADIAYIS YYD ISVHD QUVISVYHO A Jopuap Wm

S3MddNS SOILTHLY
TOnAuoSaq 1eea

819 0099 026 00%L 0000 LE
J3QUnN Juno35V Jo HeuD
:adAy yo8yn | :2ousanbag
s1oxo1| Buipsaipa syeys :uondussaq

SADIAYIS QUVO ISVHO QUVOSVHD :dl 1o0pusp

04 [eusjay aujidiosiq 20O Aejusws|3 819 6¥0L 056 00¥1 0000 L2

tonauosaq leeq JSquINN JUnoo9Yy Jo Heqy
‘@] JuUno22y Buyoayn :adAy yoayn | :3duanbag
SUL04 [euajay aundiosig aoyQ uondudsaq

VIV SU3AN TVYLINID V3VHO ‘04l 10pusp

zeiLy\ - Aug Buipsaipn sio
Gondmosaq rera

018 0099 0Z6 00%L 0000 12
JSqunN JUNoo3Y JO HeyD
:adA) osyn | :@ouanbag
zz/4/L - Aug Bumpsaipy spio uondussaq

LOR1SIA TOOHIS ALINNIWINOD TVHLNID OHOSAINID Q1 Jopuap

Zz/ok/1 - Ayuz Busaim spo
UoNAnSsaq 5150

018 0099 0C6 00¥L 0000 L2
ToqUNN JUN095Y 10 HeUD)
:adAy yosyn | :9ouanbag
2z/oL/ - Anuz Bupsaipn suo uonduoseg

aso S11v4 ¥va3d TIv4vazd a1 J0puaA *

T2\ - [BPYO ([eqadseg
e ==Ta T

SP€ 0099 026 00¥1L 0000 L2

ToquINN WNG35V Jo Yeyd

:adA) oayd | :Sousnbag

Z2/LL - 1euO |legidyseg :uonduosaq
g04d ‘dWvD H049dINVD :di Jopusp *

Anu3wsuwrewno] Buipsaip suo 018 0099 0Z6 00¥L 0000 L2

vondmosaq refed TSqUnN JUNG33Y Jo HElD
@) Junodoy Bunpayn :adA} }osy)n | :®ousanbag
zeren-Anu uswewno] Buipsaipa s :uondussag

LOMMLSIA TOOHOS VSOWVYNY VSOWVNY Qi Jopuap
Z2og Aenuer - saoloaul AQIARdY  :uonduosaq yoreg

NV 1101 220¢2/elL/lo
fooyog Ajunwwo) ueueyong jseg



0058

00°06

00°00L

00°0¥2

00°2S0°L

L6°66

00°8¢

o™ aidesn
Z :abed

ind uj

00°68
‘unowy

000
aunowy

000
unowy

Ind uj

000
Junowy

ER]
000
unowy

feui
ma

000
Junowy

N4 u

000
Junowy

N 00'S8 00's8

BB J5S5V/1SSSY JUNow Ie18Q 6601 JUNOUNY 1e150 dl PsJ 1s0D

91eq Yoauo Jlaquuny Yosyn
JUNOWY 6601 Y SMIBIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 @le@ena  ZZ0z/LO0/L0  eied S910AU|
ZZLL 19quInN 3910AU| JaquinN Od
N 0006
Bel 1955V/A9SsSY JUNOWY [[B19d 6601 JUNOWY IB19g  Qf J91usD) 1500
:3)eQ Nodyn Jaquinp Mosyn
JUNOWY 6601 Y SNIEIS ZZ0Z/ZL/L0 @1ed 8nd  ¢zZ0zZ/80/L0 :Steq @910Au]
2281 49quINN ad10AU| :JaquinN Od
N 00001
De[ J1955y/joSSY JUNoUly [IB18@ 660} JUNOWV 190 Q[ Jo1U9D) 1500
:9jeq »o8yD JaquInp %08y9
Junowy 6601 Y 'SMIEIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 P1edana  LZ0Z/9L/0L  -ereq eoloau
Z2¢9% 1aqunN II0AUY J3quinN Od
N 000¥2
. BeL 19551555V JUNoWiy (1879 6601 JUNOWV eJ5d  A1J91Ua0) 1509
:81eq »o8yo Jsquiny %28y
Junowy 6601 Vv ISMIBIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 ©1edena  Zg0zZ/90/L0  ie1eq 90loAu|
9Z1LZ :49quInp 2910AU| :JaquinN Od
N 00°50'L
B[ 1955v//5SSY Junouly 18180 6601 JUNOW [E19G {1 J91U9)) 1500
91eQ %o8UD Jsquiny %98y
JUNOWY 6601 ¥ 'SNIEIS ZZ0Z/ZL/L0 ©1eadana  Izoz/LL/L0  eveq Solony|
LINZZLLL :19qunp ad10Au] :asquinN Od

N 1666

BE[ 1955y//95sV JUNOWY 18150 6601 JUNOWI [Eled QI 191055 1500

aled Y9y JaquInN Yoayon
Junowy 6601 Y SMIEIS ZZ0Z/ZL/L0 BIeaena  LZ0Z/SZ/ZL e¥ed 8dloau)
D1ZI90 :4equINN 2210AU| 0¥20-zZ :equinN Od
N 0082
BE{ J8SSV/18ssY [UNoWY (18790 6601 WUNOWV IBI8d Q[ J81UsD) 1500
:21eq »08yd :JOquInN %93Y0
JUNOWY 6601  V SNIEIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 @1BQand  LZOZ/OS/LL :e1ed S9l0Au]
20071 :1aquinp 9210AU| iquinN Od
N 00°Z9%
be] 1555yassY JUNOWIY [E19Q 6601 UMWY lejed  (f 191U9) 1500

:8jeq ¥o8yD Jaquin 3oayo

220z Menuey - ssotonu] Ajaoy
11e39Q - Bugsi @sto0au)

:dl 3UNno22y Buyosyn

Q1 uNo22y Bunpay)

'@l unoasy Buoayn

:a1unodoy Buppayd

Zz/L\L - [BIOWO IeqIaYsEd
Uonassaa ERa

S¥€ 0099 0Z6 00¥ L 0000 L2

JSqunN JUNoooY 0 PEqY)

adA ) doayn | :@ousnbag

CeiLL - euO lleqieyseg uonduosag
LYIFOY ‘IMVHO - JHOUMVYYD :Al Jopuap -MM

2z/8/L - 19USSH Y - [BIOWO [[eqioNseg
UoRAIESaq 1e19a

L6€ 0099 026 00%| 0000 12

JoqUNnN JUNG39Y Jo HEUD

:adA) oay)D L :=eousnbeg

22/8/f1 - JsussH "y - [BIoWO |leqidyseg uojduoseq
aNNd IVY3INTD ANNANIO Al J0puap *

duj piold apes puzasi
uonanssaq ered

668 0G0/ 056 00¥L 0000 L2

JSQUINN JUNG33Y 16 Heq)

:2dA] Wy | :8ouanbag

2IB8A3Y B1S0Y - SpeIS) puzas| :uopduosaq
INN-OVda9 ANTGTIVO :dl J0pusp

sen( diysrequispy
Uondusssq resq

668 010/ 056 00%1 0000 12

JoqUinN JUNC3V J0 Hey]

:adA) ¥oayn | :@ouenbag

sonq diyssiaquapy uonduosaq
VORIIIWY 40 sH3av3] SS3INISNE Jdnind V184 4l 1opusA IVW\

du] o1snp Apui/eseyo-punsey
UoRduseq rered

668 1229 016 00¥1 0000 12
JOqUIAN JUNo99Y JO Heqy
:adA) ¥oay)H | :3ouanbag
du ) o1snyy Apulpy/eseys-puniay uondussag

AGQNIN ANV N319 'S17N4 GNIALTNG Al JopusA .*

‘@1 unoooy Bupposyd

819 9204 056 00¥1 0000 L2

JSqQUINN JUnoddY Jo Jeyy

:adA] woayn 1 =@ousnbag

uoneuoq wey v44 :uondussag
"ONI ‘S3HOLS AVMINYA AVM3dvd d| Jopusp

uoeucq WeH v44
(G E=Tq REET

'@l Wunoooy Buppayn

HIys ojod
UCHAISS5q 1esa

819 0104 056 00¥} 0000 L2

JOqUINN JUnoJ9y JO HEUD

:2dA] yoayn | :@ouanbag

Hs ojod :uopduosaqg
ITINNIS3A -aji Jopusap

‘a1 3uno22y Bupjoayn

Q3LINITINN SNOIS3A

duy oisnp Aqury - pungey
UoHaI5s3q Tevea

668 LZZ9 016 00¥1 0000 L2
JSqQUINN JUNoo0Y §0 Beq)
:adh] yoayn | :9dusnbag

'al) uno2ay Bupjoayn

WV LL:0L 2202/2L/10
jooyss Anunwwo) ueueyong jseg



00°s6l

0o0°oLL

0008

00°sot

00'SLL

00°¢.

ST'LLL

00'se

oM aidesn
¢ afed

unowy T-12LIZL oquinN 32(0AU| 6510-2Z 4equINN Od
N OO0l 000kt
[ERY] Be} 1555V/3oSSY JUNOWY 1ejed 6601 JUNoWy e19q  QJ 818D 1500
‘@5eq o8y JaquinN yo3yo
00°0L1 JUNOWY 6601 vV SMBIS ZZ0Z/Zh0 Sledana ZZ0Z/90/L0  :91eq SoloAU|
Junowy 2Z9| :daquINpN 3910AU| uaquinN Od
N 0008
=] BE] 1555V/19SSY JUNOWY [18}ed 6601 JUNOWY Bjo Q] JaIUsD) 1500
:ale@ %oeyo 42qUWINN %23y
00°0 Junowy 6601 Vv Smelg ¢cocgiel/l0 #eqang  Zz0z/80/10  i@ieq SoioAau|
Junowy 2281 :Jaquunp adloAu| LequnN Od
N 00°G0L 00°60}
3y B 1555V/15SSY JUNOWY lejo0 6601 JUNOWY 6190 ] Jo1U8D) 1500
@jeq Xoayd JaquuinN oayo
00°G0l Junowy 6601 Vv 'smelg 2zoc/cl/lo @egena  Z20z/90/L0  eyeq &0I0Au|
Junowy 2291 :Jaquunp 9910AU| JaquinN Od
NOOSLL 00°GLt
inJaj Be[ 1555V/19SSV JUNOWY TIE12Q 6601 JUNCUWY 190 Q1 J31US0) 1505
@¥eq ¥oayn Jaquunp o8y
00'GLL unowy 6601 V SMeIS ZZ0z/2i/t0 eeqana  ZzZ0Z//0/L0  Sled adioau)
Junowy 2.1 H3quINp 392]0AU) JequinN Od
a)s1dwioouy N 009
m.um_nEoo:_ . N 0081
a19|dwioouy N 008t
ina4j BE1 1355V/195SV JUNOWI TIE2Q 6601 JUNOWV IEldd Q1 JoIUss 1500
Cc0Z/e0/L0  ‘=3eq@ ®oayD LELEL JaquunN Mosyd I
000 Junowy 660L  dd ‘SMeJS 220e/c0/L0 ®egang  Z20z/c0/L0 e 9910Aul
Junowy ZZ%21 Jequunp adloAu| L¥20-2Z :fequnnN Od
N QT'LLL
[ERY] De] 1955V/3eS5Y JUNoWy (16190 6601 JUNOWV E/dg Q10095 1500
‘@1eq »o9yd Jaquinn »93yd
00°0 Junowy 6601 vV snjeis 2cozc/eil/to ®eqgsng L20Z/SLIZL  -s)eq e0l0AY|
Junowry Z.¥89Z6 11aqUINN 9210AU| wJBaquinN Od
N 00°G8 00’68
=] be[ 1955V/}955Y JUNoWlY IIE120 6601 JUNOWY 8190 Q1151090 1500
:@1eq No9yo Jequinp 3oeyon
0098 IuUnowy 6601 Vv SMEIS Z202/21/i0 ®egaeng  ZzZ0zZ/80/L0  e1eQ dloAu|
unowy 2281 :J2quINN 910AU|

13qWINN Od

@t 1uno2ay Buppoayn

‘gl uno22oy Bunoayn

T2/9/L - [eRYO Buipsaipy

Al unoooy Bupioayd

CciL) - eldliO lleqieyseyg

Al uno2oy Bupioay)

:d| Juno2oy Buppayn

NOLLVIOOSSY HO33dS TOOHDIS HOIH YMOI

‘@l unoooy Bupjayd

CZ/8IL - [BRIYO |leqm@ised

‘Ql unodoy Bunppayn

220z Kenuer - saotoau] Aoy

1232 - Bunsi soroau]

S1Y0ds OTI3DILNON HO4dSLINOW :alJopusp

zz/9r - Anu3g Bumsapy
Uonduasaq reeq

S 0099 026 00¥1 0000 L2

1SQUINN JUNOJ9Y JO Jeyn)

:adA] osuyn | :@ouanbag

zzso1L - Anus Bumsaipy, suonduosag
MIUANY AV HANVAVIA :Qf JOpusp

zzi9/L - Anug Bupsaipn 018 0099 026 00%L 0000 12
uonansssqg ereg JBqUInN JUN020Y 16 TeqD
:adAy osyD | :8ousnbag
zzigiL - Az Bupsaipn uonduosasg
adsd AT TIVA VLINONOVIN TTIVADVIN :Ql JOpuap

S¥€ 0099 026 00¥1 0000 12
JSqUINN JUNoo0Y JO Heqs)
:adA{ yo9yn | @2usnbag
Zz/9/\ - ey Buipsaipy uonduosaq

MORMLYd ‘NI¥HONOT ULYdONOT :Ql 10puap

Uonauosaq ered

S¥€ 0099 026 00¥! 0000 L2
J8qQUINNJUNOd3Y JO Heyn
:adAy osyn | :edusnbag
22/4/1 - (B0 fegqiaseqg :uopduoseq

AYYHAC YIAHITTA VUAr3ITIM Al Jopusp

UoRaHoSaq 1819a

Aqu3z rosduy 668 0219 016 00O¥L 0000 L2
Anug wiry poyg 668 0Z19 0L6 00¥1 0000 12
Anu3 smaN AL 668 0219 016 00¥L 0000 L2

Uondusss(q ereq 43qLUNN JUNOJJY JO HBYD
Nooyp edAy sosyn | :sousanbag

suuo- Aqu3 yosadg dnoig) abie ousiq uondussaq
VSSHI Qi J0pusp

sjeal) AepijoH
uopdudsa( eleq

819 6%¥0/ 056 00¥L 0000 L2

JSqINN JN0J9Y JO Ueqy

:adA) yoayn | :@ouanbag

sjeal) KepijoH :uopduosaq
HONMLOH @l 10puap

WYHO0Ud HONNT LOH

S¥€ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 12

JoquinN JUNGI0Y 0 Heq)

:adh ) yosyo 1 :oouanbag

Ze/8/1 - oo lleqiseg :uonduossg
1¥390Y ‘TIMVyo JE0UMYYD Q] J0pUSA

uonduosaq [ieyeg

WV L0} 22oereLiio
[ooyds Aunwiwo) ueueyong }seg



00°06

1£°56€C

00°'v¥

00001

05°801

00°091

00°s¢L

O Al J8sn
¢ :abey

000
;Junowy

[euld
mI U]

000
Junowy

mn4u

000
Junowy

iind uj

00001
JJunowy

|euld
lind uj

000

unowy

N4 uj

000
JJunowy

lin4 uy

00°'Gel
‘Junowy

euld
N4 uj

000

:ajeq 0ayD J13qUINN 3o8yD
JUNOWY 6601  V SMIEIS ZZOZ/ZL/LO0 Pleaend  LZ0Z/8ligl  8)ed S010Au|
1281Z1 :JoqWINN ad10AU] :1equinN Od
. N . LEG6E'. .
BE] 195SV/Ie55Y JUNoWY (16750 660} UNOWY MBS Q] 1980 1500
2202/20/L0 :o1e@ %o8UD €EIEL  UBQUINN 084D z
Junowy 6601 dd SNIeIS ZZ0Z/Z0/L0 ®le@ena  Zz0z//0/L0  S1eq 9910AUj
686269611 :JAqUINN a210AU| £620-2Z JOquinN Od
N 00t \
BEL 1S55V/195SY JUNOWY [1€}e( 660} JUNOWY [E}od 4] JeWaD 1805
:|1eQ Yooy JaquinN ¥oeyon
qunoury 6601V SNJBIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 @lea end  ZZ0Z/MO/L0  eled 9910Au|
1-2Z02 :43quinp 8910AuUj :JlaquinN Od
N 00°001 00001
Be 1555V/SSSY JUNOWV 18190 6601 JUNOWY Ejleg QI K09 1500
:ajeq 8yD JaquINN %98yD .
JUNOUNY 660L -V [SMEBIS ZZOZ/ZL/L0 @B ena  ZZ0Z//0/0 :81eq S9I0AU|
ZZ.L1 12quInpN 9210AU| 13quinN Od
N 05804 .

BE[ 1855V/3955V JUNouy 16190 660} JUNOWv IB19a QI 181080 1565

:areq ¥oayo Jaguinp MoayD

Junowny 6601 Y SMEIS ZZOZ/ZL/IL0 Bledsena  LZ0z/cz/ll  eveq Solony|

00112 - JoquInp 3210AY[ 7120-ZZ  “8quInN Od

N 00094
BeL 15SSV/35SSY JunowWly lejed 6601 WUNOWV 8190 I Jo1Us) 1500
220ZF0/10 :31Eqd %09UD ZEIEL  JequINN 08yD z
JUnowy 660L  dd SMIBIS ZZOZ/VO/L0 B1edenQ  ZZ0Z/rO/L0  Sleq S910Au|
22511 Mequinp a210AU} :requinN Od

N 00'SZL 00'6ZL
De[ 155SY/5ssY JUnoWY 16190 6601 JUNOWY 819G O 191050 1503

:9)eq Xoayo J1aquinN 3o9yo)

UnoURy 6601V ISMIEIS ZZ0Z/ZL/L0 Pledena  ZZ0Z//0/L0  [eled Q2I0Au|
ZZ.L :13quInp 3210AU| aquinN od

N 00561

58] 1555v/155SY JUNOWY €190 6601 UNOWV TBYed QT I8/095 1500

:areq ¥o8yD JaquuIny Moayo

Junouwiy 6601 V SMEIS ZC0C/CL/L0 ™edaeang 1Z0Z/LLZ)L  @1eq =oloAu|

220z Kienuer - saoioau) ANAoY

ie1aq - Bunsiy astoau)

1@l Junoooy Bunpayn :adAj yoayn | :@ousnbag
L2/8LIZL - 824 Anu3 Buipsaipn :uonduosaq
SO LINOWNHVLS LNOWNVLS :Ql 10pusp

SpieD Y1 819 0104 056 00¥L 0000 L2
Uonduosaq eleqg TSquNN JUNG3oY 1o veqy
| Junoa2y Buppayn 3ooyp :adAy soayn | :@ousnbag
spieD duog :uopduosaq
didOS HLIM dOHS diMOSHOHS :dl fopusp

SISAsUM 819 0219 016 001 0000 LZ
uonanssaq ey J3qUUNN JUN0JJY JO UBYD
‘@l unodoy Bupjosyn :adAj yoayn | ®ousnbag
slafsuUp uonduosaeq
d3did A9 S303id IdIdI3id Al Jopuap

<2/ - B0 lleqiseg S¥€ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 L2
N Tondusssq rereq I9qUINN JUNO2JY JO Heyd
A1 N2y Buppay) :adA) woayn | :9ouanbag
ZT/L/) - [ePWO lleqiiseg uonduoseqg
IVVYIVF ‘S31d33d VNVrd33d -al Jopusp

abexoed yooaqpueH aanedwos Jsequng 819 9204 056 00¥1 0000 L2
UoRdnsssq fiereq J5qUINN NG5V 10 el
dl uno22y Bunpayn :edA| oayn | :oousnbag
abesoed yoogpueH aagyadwoy :uonduosag
J3jua)n
{eLISjel [BUOIIONAISU| 24NPAJ0Id Aurjuauieijieg THVAMIN :Q] Jopusap

SASNIJXT YIHLO 9N SHILSHOOH 93 6612 ¢S50/ 056 00v1 0000 L2
Uondiosaq reeq J3qUINN JUNO3JY JO ey
‘Al uno2oy Bupjoayy MooyD adAy xosyp | :eousnbag
Ayu3 yuawewnoy gg suis apel) yig uondusssg

TIVELIMSYE STHID NNIT HLMON g4997N Q] Jopusp

<2/ - [eUO lleqieyseg S¥€ 0099 026 00} 0000 L2
uonduasa( eysg JSquinN JunoJdY JO Heyd
'@l Wunoooy Supjoayd :adA1 woayn | :8ousnbag
T2/ - eRwO lleqieyseg uonduosaq

443r ‘SNVH3IN d443MH3IN :Ql 10pusp

Slleqieysed 6€/ 0099 026 00¥L 0000 12

uondusss(q ferq JoqUInN JUNCISY JO HEdD

:dl unooady Bunoayn :adA1 ¥osy)H | :oousnbag
sjleqieyseg :uondussaq

WY LL:0L 2202/CL/L0
jooyas Ayunwiwioy usueysng yseg



15'999°L

16'999'L

[4: W x4

O™ Al desn

G :ebey

‘fejo poday 00°0+8 ‘[e101 6601 Hoday
2101 yojeg 00°0¥8 104 6601 yojeg
N 292
iing uj BB1 195SV/195SY UNOWY 150 6601 JUNOUTY eRq gl 483ua] 1S0D
81eg #osyo J3qQUINN >93YD
00°0 Wwnouny 6604 Vv snels Zcoc/el/Lo efeq eng L202/02/CL =yeq adonu|
Junowy ZS5ZZ1 1equiny 2010Aul :equnN 0d
N 0006 ’
O be] 1855VaSSY JUnowly 1e1eq 6601 UNOWV B30 GT 151085 1505

220z Aenuep - saoicau] Aoy

11e33@ - Bugsiy:aatonu)

8195104 0G6 GOVl 0000 L2

J3qWINN JUNO3JY JO Heyd

:adKy Mosyn { :oousnbeg

saiddng a101g posg :uondudsseq
g ALINNIIWOD LHVINTYM LAVINIVAA a1 JOpusp

$3AMNddNS 3401S 334

‘@) unodoy Bunpayy

L2181zt - 924 Aqu3 Bumsaipn 018 0099 026 001 0000 2

ToqUINN JURC35Y JO HEq)

NV L1101 2202/2in
|ooy2g Aunwwio) ueueyong jseq



16°€92
¥6'/2€'C
05°920'L
8L'EVL
18°000't
1ecozol
£26'906
8zezL'L
¥8oeL'l
9€°1€S
GG°/¢
16'9¢.
L0°1EL
Stees’)
95°ZeL'Yy
G9€eB'ZL
€6'912
ey
§9'cee
L'9€6'C
I 4
28700¢g
29°0LF'L
65'9.¢
60°€0V'L
20°'L1S'S
zLr8LE'L
ZO6YYr'T
68°S¥6'C
0svi
98'99Z'Gl
SL'SLL
ov'LED'E
8zTeEV')L
8¢°LL6
8/°068
1£°640'8
000
soueleg

O Al Jesn
| :obeyd

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
00°0
000
000
000
000
000
000

3bueq) souejeg

000
000
000
000
000
00'88/
000
000
000
Lg'egl'e
000
SC'¥6S
JAN A
000
68'650'1L
00°58L'Y
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000

© 000

oo'o
000
00'og9
000
000
00°'G.5'
000
000
00°esL
00°€SE
ooely
00’0
000

SBnUSASy

000
000
00°0
000
000
60°0EY'L
000
0Svv
000
19°€58°Z
000
£6'8¥
000
000
or'es
9CBEY'T
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000

*000

00¢6l
000
000
000
000
00'6S5'
000
0005
000
00002
00091
0o'sve
ooo
Sasuadxg

L6°€9L
¥6°228'C
05°920'L
8Leyl
18°090°L
oV ¥06°cC
16906
8719171
¥89eL'L
gg'1ee
8G'/€
65181
06’601
Sr'ETe’t
Lroes's
16°98L'LL
£6°91Z
YrArAR 4
s9Zee
L¥'9€6'C
SL'eel
28'00e
L9°0L¥')
65°9/€
60°COV'L
20°€0L's
zLr8lg'L
o618l
69'6Y6'C
0S¥l
98'0S2'S1
SL'SLL
ov'isn's
82'6/C'L
8E¥9/
8L/6G
LE'¥68'8
000
Souefeg buiuubag

Lcoerel - ieozret

Saduesquinoug apniaxy - Aewwing - Joday asueleg pung AIARoy

_—

TvalaMsva-g ong I
ONILOOHSdVHL
NILSAS ANNOS

TIONNOD IN3ANLS SW

an19 v

\£E]
ADOTONHOIL
an1d sJ1L0aoy
HYAdVdSMIN
910 Advddan
gNn79 SSANLA
J401Ss a334
SHN

aNn1d HSINVdS

TONNOD LINIANLS SH

viad

4709 STHIO
ADVIL STHIO
Tvaidos
TIVAATTIOA
TveaL13aMsvd SO
ONITLSTUM
4709 .8A09
ADVHL SAOG
Tva3sva
TIva1004
TIval3aMsva sA0d
Wv31 IONva
ONIQVITYIIHD
AYLNNOD SSOYD
SOUFTHLY
gyvno JO0100
ditL JISNIN

ANV d3d

an1o Jsnn
HO33dS

YINVHA
aouejeg puny

Gondiosa( Junooddy 1o UeqH

056 622 £¥0L LC
056 62 2v0L LT
056 62/ LY0L LT
066 621 0¥0.L L2
0$6 622 £20L 12
056 62/ 9201 12
056 62L SZ0L LT
056 622 120L 12
056 62 020L LZ
056 628102 L2
056 62 940 12
066 622 Gl0L LZ
0S6 62L €10 L
0S6 622Cl0L L
0S6 622 L10L LT
056 6220102 LC
0Z6 622 0989 L2
026 62. 089 12
026 62. G€89 1T
026 6225189 {2
026 6220189 L2
026 621 06/9 LC
026 622 0929 12
026 622 029 1T
0ce6cL0e9 L2
0c66¢L02/9 12
026622014912
026 621 ¥699 LT
026 62 €699 LT
06 62/ G¥99 12
026 622 0099 L2
Ole 6212229 I
016 6211229 LT
016 622 0229 LT
016 60129 IZ
016 620219 IC
o662l iilole
000 622 0000 2
TSqUINN JUN033y JO HEqs

GNNd ALIALLDY iz :pung

WV 9G:L| 2202/€0/10

jooyos Alunwwo?) ueueyong jseg



96°285'0¢S) 000 96'€£0'S1 6.°080'8L 6. ¥09'cEl
12925 000 8798 000 £L'65F
18'60L°C 000 £ 000 000 18'60L'2
£6'986°t 000 000 000 £6°986'L
2r'868'L 000 000 000 Zr'868'L
00'SS 000 000 000 00'6S
00'625 000 000 000 00'52S
9/'6SL 000 000 000 9/'65.
(R4 000 000 000 LeLEL
86ere'L 000 000 000 86'Zve'L
09°€1S'L 000 000 000 09°€tS't
98'GYLL 000 000 000 98'srL'L
99°0EL'L 000 000 000 99°0€L'}
S0'€09'L 000 000 000 S0'€09'L
21965l 000 09'GL 00°002 LWL
1£°699'c 000 000 000 1£'599°c
aJuefeg abuey) soueleg SonuoASY sosusdxg 3ouejeq buiuur
O ‘dl Josn 1eozrel
¢ 9bed

‘|ejo] pung

SodUBIqUINDUT apNIoX] - Aewwns - Hoday souejeg pund Aoy

TORAIDSaQ 1UNo35V J0 HEuD

1STUIINI

AYOMUIIN HIIANVYIONG IHL
an1d ¥Y33aNvooNng

IVANNY
1202 4O SSV10
9202 40 SSV10
§20Z 40 SSV10
+¥20¢ 4O SSVY10
€20¢ 40 SSY10
2¢0¢ 40 SSY10

8N712 1Sv-DHiv3ayg
aN710 SY31S400H 93

AISdYM dWVD

NONNOD "1LS ‘W33

sigd

016 622 ¥008 {C
016°62L 2008 LT
0L6 62/ 1008 IC
016 6¢2 0008 12
066 6222801 IZ
0S6 622 1801 1T
056 624 0801 T
056 6CL 6202 1T
066 624 8/0. T
0S6 622 L/0L \T
056 622 €501 L2
056 6¢L ¢S0L LT
0S6 62. 1S0L 12
056 622 050Z T
0G6 62 6¥0. LT

TeqUINN JUnoooV Jo e

aNNd ALIALLDVY
WV 9G LI £202/e0/10

1z :pung

jooyos AYunwiwo?) ueueyong jsel



1¥0d3y IOVITIN

TOOHOS NVNVHONG LSV3

——

€25°2E 9 - - 6 _.w = 8¥0'S = ,p|- ¥6e'ce aviolL
m 0 B 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 aNnr
0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 AVIN
0] 0 0 0 0 _o 0] 0 |=m_n_<||
. 0 mu 0] 0 0 0 0 0 HOYVIN
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | Advniug3d
0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 ) AUVANVTE
8eL’L 0 .o ) 0 0 ) L20'L 0 2909 ¥3dW303a
8€6°. 0 0 0 0 eSLL 0 G8.'9 JIGINIAON
rN.m.w 0 B 0 o 0 | 0 mm.wm 0 9zL'2 ¥390100 .
0/2'6 ) 29 0 19 0 vieh 0 126, }IHNI1d3S
_vo_‘.m 0] 0 ) 4] 0 eve 0 698'C lsnonv
2621 0 0 0 0 [#A 0 0c6 Alnr
ST SN SATIN SITIN SERLY SN SATNW SERI S3TN STTIN HINOW
[ vioL "OSIN d3IHLO Q3 SY3IANINA | dSNVAL | IVIAOL1SND | ALIAILDV |'d3 IvID3dS ‘Ninav 3in0yd
sng sng .m:m snd sng sng | sng snd snd B snd ]
¢ecoc-teoc




89G6°/9 181 = - 0.6 ger'l sve'vlL 158°91L 18G°L coe'ze avioL
V10l "OSIN mm__._._.mV ~ |a3 s¥aAa .mww-(m._. viaolsnd >“_\|,_HU<| ‘d3a TvIo3ds "NINGV 31Nn0d NVA/SNg .|.
S¥0'0E 611 - - vww .mwwv;‘ 002’6 -. Nmm.wl_‘ 18G'L 8 viol
0 0 ) 0 B 0 0 0 0 0] 0 mzmﬁ||
0 0 i 0 | 0 0 - 0 0 0] - 0 ><_o_ |
0 B 0 mu 0 0 0 0 0 0 TdVY
.o 0 B 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0 0 HOYVIN
0 0 0 B 0 0 B 0 0 . 0 _ 0 Advnyga3d
0 0 0 ) 0 0] . 0 0 ) 0 0 AUVNANVE
mm.m 0 o 0 €91 - a8l 9¢s vee'y Scl 0] m_wlmmzwowml
€809 0 0 S9L ¥oL R 6vC’'L £08'¢c ¢0L 0 UIGINIAON
¥8Y'6 0 : LE €ce LE6'E oL¥'y €0s : 0 ¥390100 )
ocL’s ..mm 0 ¥6l 1144 L6e’L ] 680°¢ £81 0 Y393 1d3s
mu_m 8¢ 0 _ 0 Gie G68'lL m_\o.l_‘ 0. 0 ._.mDWD<
mw ce 0 13 6¢¢ [4014 88l 0 8 Anr
SdTIN SN SN SATIN SN S3ATIN SN S3ATIN SN SATN HLNOW
Iv1i0ol "OSIN ¥3HL0 03 SHIAARIA | "dSNVML | TVIQOLSND | ALIAILOV @3 IVID3dS ‘NInav 31N0d
AYIINVA HVIINVA UVIINVA UVOINVA UVIINVA UVIINVA HVI/NVA HUVI/NVA UVI/NVA UVIINVA o
ccoe-ieoc

1¥0d3d 3oVITIN

TOOHOS NVNVHONg 1Sv3




§8'8/06L$ [6/G55CL$ | 000'L90G |90°€259$ | 000W¥EZ |12 EOE8LS _B.mmw.mw 000'10v'v _|€1 229°9% 000%0v'C | STVLOL
= $| - §| = - s[_= - $| - = S| - - 8§ - $| - annr
- s - s - - 8| - - $| - = s - - $| - $| - AVIN
- s| - s - - s - | - s - = _§[| - - s - §[ - "ddv
- s - s| - - | - - 5| - I - s - s| - HONVIN
= §| - §| - — §| - : § - - - $] - 8| - ‘g3
: 5| - S| - - s - - 3 - I - s - $| - NVF
l0€sEy $[86'6EL'E $[00008L°L |€0EVZL $|000€Sy | 8E6E9G  $ | €2GE6'E $ | 199 $ | 0006LFL |SLPOLL $|vvic $| 000129 | -0ad
[Gl'6Ty'y  $[6980€ $[000L11L | 9FOSE'L $| 00089y |9v'9eL€ | OvOlve $ | L/ZC $ | 0002/8 900LE’L $[988Z $[000¥S¥ | AON
¥LTE0'S  §[S00Z€ $[000201°L |622€8’t $|000GE9 | 8c¥6S5C $ | 68665 L 168C $ | 0002SS 6£866 | 983C $ | 0009¥E 100
PIVOL'E §|S0CI6L §|000/SIT | 60252+ §| 00069y | S2vhZ€ §|S0Zi6T §|9heZ § | 000716Z glzecl $|ol9¢ $ 00066y | “1d3s
[ 160vFL  $ | ¥80EL  $ | 000°€0€E 1001, $ | 000892 . s| - = §| -~ - s - $| - onv |
06829 $[8/€6y $[000€0z |cLSEL 6 |000WS | 9c660€ §| - ZEY'C $ | 000°2¥L S€8C’L $|0S9Z §$ | 0008y AN
G3IWNSNOD | 'SNOD "SNOD "SNOD "SNOD  |Q3SVHOuNd| HOANd | 1VvD | 'HOMNd | 'HOdNd | ~IvO | 'HOdNd | HLNOW
13S31Q/SVD | 13s3Id 13s3ia 3 R) svo  |73s3ia/svo | 13said ¥ad J3saia SV ¥3d SVO
1SO0D V10L| 1S0D Svo 1S09 'STvD  [1S0D21VIOL| 1S0D 1S0D | ‘'s1v9 1S0D 1s00 | ‘sIvo -
1202-020Z

1A0d3d ASNIdX3 13SIIA/ANITOSYD

TOOHIS ALINNWINOD NYNVHONS LSv3



East Buchanan Community School District
Cash Summary Report

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21
10-GENERAL FUND
Beginning Balance 2,950,610.76 2,448,296.94 1,895,154.69 1,785,715.27 2,555,393.19 2,491,530.81
Revenue 81,773.40 170,952.28 445,736.85 1,353,982.72 584,114.21 591,644.61
Expenditures 584,087.22 724,094.53 555,176.27 584,304.80 647,976.59 604,100.65
Ending Balance 2,448,296.94 1,895,154.69 1,785,715.27 2,555,393.19 2,491,530.81 2,479,074.77
21-ACTIVITY FUND
Beginning Balance 136,915.26 122,184.38 130,840.99 140,911.50 136,580.80 133,604.79
Revenue 1,536.73 14,424.03 20,871.38 83,774.79 18,901.64 15,033.96
Expenditures 16,267.61 5,767.42 10,800.87 88,105.49 21,877.65 18,080.79
Ending Balance 122,184.38 130,840.99 140,911.50 136,580.80 133,604.79 130,557.96
22-MANAGEMENT FUND
Beginning Balance 319,600.48 199,324.82 197,952.92 197,663.14 219,601.31 218,127.32
Revenue 1,218.24 0.00 710.22 23,340.02 4,411.01 1,281.04
Expenditures 121,493.90 1,371.90 1,000.00 1,401.85 5,885.00 1,351.00
Ending Balance 199,324.82 197,952.92 197,663.14 219,601.31 218,127.32 218,057.36
33-SAVE
Beginning Balance 3,161,229.02 3,006,217.31 3,058,474.,79 3,110,693.49 3,151,960.02 3,283,547.87
Revenue 233,048.29 52,257.48 52,218.70 52,297.53 131,587.85 68,481.39
Expenditures 388,060.00 0.00 0.00 11,031.00 0.00 32,235.00
Ending Balance 3,006,217.31 3,058,474.79 3,110,693.49 3,151,960.02 3,283,547.87 3,319,794.26
36-PPEL
Beginning Balance 617,863.38 609,637.24 564,299.81 543,531.45 661,820.94 637,434.02
Revenue 5,026.96 368.48 6,718.18 160,447.49 40,632.09 12,748.12
Expenditures 13,253.10 45,705.91 27,486.54 42,158.00 65,019.01 6,425.03
Ending Balance 609,637.24 564,299.81 543,531.45 661,820.94 637,434.02 643,757.11
40-DEBT SERVICE
Beginning Balance 236,982.41 241,765.42 241,282.58 248,089.80 374,676.50 412,500.34
Revenue 596,117.25 17.16 6,807.22 210,180.45 38,123.84 44,610.49
Expenditures 591,334.24 500.00 0.00 83,593.75 300.00 32,235.00
Ending Balance 241,765.42 241,282.58 248,089.80 374,676.50 412,500.34 424,875.83
less: Escrow Acct 215,000.00 215,000.00 215,000.00 215,000.00 215,179.09 215,179.09
26,765.42 26,282.58 33,089.80 159,676.50 197,321.25 209,696.74
61-NUTRITION FUND
Beginning Balance 129,985.33 131,211.21 138,589.96 125,563.27 152,471.06 117,521.46
Revenue 3,707.94 7,876.81 13,535.83 80,021.89 16,616.42 105,652.23
Expenditures 2,482.06 498.06 26,562.52 53,114,10 51,566.02 53,236.99
Ending Balance 131,211.21 138,589.96 125,563.27 152,471.06 117,521.46 169,936.70
less: Received on Acct 6,735.72 12,604.12 11,277.82 9,492.37 8,923.08 8,594.63
124,475.49 125,985.84 114,285.45 142,978.69 108,598.38 161,342.07
EMPLOYER'S PAYROLL EXPENSE:
Gross Wages-hourly 45,842.88 35,196.48 39,455.83 96,593.41 98,140.31 92,218.19
Gross Wages-contract 289,623.24 290,390.02 322,384.59 323,356,53 327,647.50 318,544.68
335,466.12 325,586.50 361,840.42 419,949.94 425,787.81 410,762.87
Employer paid deductions 47,964.48 46,670.85 59,972.02 54,647.37 52,447.91 51,207.87
Employer paid IPERS 30,809.03 29,295.13 33,303.46 38,814.49 39,401.11 37,458.69
Employer paid FICA 25,939.04 22,765.01 26,453.43 31,134,18 31,577.13 30,370.94
104,712.55 98,730.99 119,728.91 124,596.04 123,426.15 119,037.50
TOTAL 440,178.67 424,317.49 481,569.33 544,545.98 549,213.96 529,800.37



CASH SUMMARY REPORT
EAST BUCHANAN COMMUNITY SCHOOL

December 2021
FY22 FY21

Fund Description Beginning Revenues Expenditures Ending End Balance Difference
GENERAL (10) $2,491,530.81 $591,644.61 $604,100.65 $2,479,074.77)| $2,705,627.13 ($226,552.36)
ACTIVITY (21) $133,604.79 $15,033.96 $18,080.79 $130,557.96 $136,934.18 ($6,376.22)
MANAGEMENT (22) $218,127.32 $1,281.04 $1,351.00 $218,057.36 $287,968.93 ($69,911.57)
CAPITAL PROJECT (31) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
SAVE (33) $3,283,547.87 $68,481.39 $32,235.00 $3,319,794.26§] $2,983,000.93 $336,793.33
PPEL (36) $637,434.02 $12,748.12 $6,425.03 $643,757.11 $471,013.73 $172,743.38
DEBT SERVICE (40) $412,500.34 $44,610.49 $32,235.00 $424,875.83 $286,777.56 $138,098.27
NUTRITION (61) $117,521.46 $105,652.23 $53,236.99 $169,936.70 $50,292.46 $119,644.24

TOTAL $7.386,053.99] $6,921,614.92 $464,439.07

$3,500,000.00 -

$3,000,000.00 -

$2,500,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$1,500,000.00

# Current FY
$1,000,000.00 -

N Previous FY

$500,000.00 -

$0.00




RECEIPTS
Student Breakfast
Student Lunch
Adult Breakfast
AAult Lunch

sarte
Snacks
Federal Breakfast
Federal Lunch
State Breakfast
State Lunch
ECO Grant
Other Revenues
Other Purchased Services
Rebate
Interest
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURES
Food

Commodities
Supplies

Shared Contract
Purchased Services
Equipment

Travel

Other Expenses
Cooks Salaries
Benefits

"""!'AL EXPENDITURES

BALANCE
Beginning Balance
Income
Expenditures
FUND BALANCE

MEALS SERVED

Paid Student Breakfasts
Reduced Student Breakfasts
Free Student Breakfasts

Second Breakfasts

Adult Breakfasts

Student Guest Breakfasts
Complimentary Breakfasts
TOTAL BREAKFASTS SERVED

Paid Student Lunches

Reduced Student Lunches

Free Student Lunches

Second Lunches

Adult Lunches

Student Guest Lunches

Complimentary Lunches
T)FAL LUNCHES SERVED

SSO Breakfasts Served
SSO Lunches Served

MONTH PRIOR RECEIPT YEAR TO DATE
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$76.55 $1,818.36 $1,894.91
$10.50 $108.00 $118.50
$414.75 $1,560.25 $1,975.00
$3,712.95 $16,449.85 $20,162.80
$1,651.87 $6,005.82 $7,657.69
$15,947.14 $9,702.24 $25,649.38
$73,090.95 $49,603.75 $122,694.70
$0.00 $148.07 $148.07
$0.00 $455.85 $455.85
$0.00 $1,653.98 $1,653.98
$0.00 $2,080.56 $2,080.56
-$47.16 -$311.48 -$358.64
$792.57 $0.00 $792.57
$99.41 $417.30 $516.71
$95,649.53 $89,5692.55 $185,242.08
MONTH PRIOR EXPENSE YEAR TO DATE
$18,417.22 $67,936.14 $86,353.36
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$582.25 $3,356.55 $3,938.80
$14,085.28 $0.00 $14,085.28
$0.00 $933.75 $933.75
$0.00 $1,212.43 $1,212.43
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$194.00 $532.73 $726.73
$7,441.97 $19,571.57 $27,013.54
$2,613.57 $8,613.25 $11,026.82
$43,234.29 $102,056.42 $145,290.71
0 PRIOR BALANCE YEAR TO DATE

$0.00 $129,985.33 $129,985.33
$95,649.53 $89,592.55 $185,242.08
$43,234.29 $102,056.42 $145,290.71

$562,415.24 $117,521.46 $169,936.70
MONTH PRIOR BALANCE YEAR TO DATE

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

35 249 284

7 73 80

0 0 0

0 0 0

42 322 364

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

112 407 519

0 0 0

0 0 0

112 407 519

2,571 10,416 12,987

7,030 28,419 35,449

C2021:2002
East Buchanan

Hot Lunch

\__ Report

DAYS MEALS SERVED

July 0
August 7
September 20
October 20
November 18
December 16
January 0
February 0
March 0
April 0
May 0
June 0
TOTALS 81

Decemoe




Certified Budget compared to Actual Revenues/Expenditures - All Funds

FY22 Certified over / (under)
Budget as of 12/31/21 budget

Taxes Levied on Property 113 2,907,753.00 | $ 1,617,717.55

Utility Replacement Excise Tax 2]l $ 46,274.00 | $ 22,848.82

Income Surtaxes 3]18 158,455.00 | § 113,205.00
Tuition\Transportation Received 41 $ 575,000.00 | § 20,635.00

Earnings on Investments 518 81,500.00 | $ 25,582.36

Nutrition Program Sales 6| $ 165,000.00 | $ 31,708.90

Student Activities and Sales 71 % 189,000.00 | $ 104,038.70

Other Revenues from Local Sources 8] % 91,000.00 | $ 85,280.60

Revenue from Intermediary Sources 9] $ -

State Foundation Aid 10] $ 4,059,983.00 | $ 1,610,196.40

Instructional Support State Aid 11]$ 15,336.00

Other State Sources 121 581,350.00 | § 410,715.25

Commercial & Industrial State Replacement 131 § 20,453.00 | $ 8,190.93

Title 1 Grants 14] $ 70,000.00 | $ 6,575.22

IDEA and Other Federal Sources 15] § 320,000.00 | $ 179,441.67

Total Revenues 16] $ 9,281,104.00 | $ 4,236,136.40

General Long-Term Debt Proceeds 171 $ - $ -

Transfers In 18] $ 313,178.00 | $ 219,177.50

Proceeds of Fixed Asset Dispositions 191 § - 3 -

Special Items/Upward Adjustments 20] $ - $ (6,002.55)

Total Revenues & Other Sources 211 $ 9,594,282.00 | $ 4,449,311.35

Beginning Fund Balance 221 $ 6,697,739.27 | §  6,697,739.27

Total Resources 231 $ 16,292,021.27 | § 11,147,050.62

*Instruction 241 § 5,284,000.00 | $ 1,729,944.66 (3,554,055.34)
Student Support Services 251 $ 207,500.00 | $ 84,700.43

Instructional Staff Support Services 26| $ 483,000.00 | $ 265,581.76

General Administration 271 $ 266,500.00 | $ 128,821.05

School/Building Administration 28] $ 375,000.00 | $ 179,373.36

Business & Central Administration 291 $ 120,000.00 | § 69,963.81

Plant Operation and Maintenance 301 $ 627,000.00 | $ 342,638.27

Student Transportation 311 $ 453,000.00 | $ 242,144 .90

This row is intentionally left blank 32| % - $ -

*Total Support Services (lines 25-32) 32A1 §$ 2,532,000.00 | $ 1,313,223.58 (1,218,776.42)
*Noninstructional Programs 331 $ 345,000.00 | $ 144,267.77 (200,732.23)
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 341 $ 468,044.00 | $ 20,594.84

Debt Service 351 $ 662,965.00 | $ 303,571.25

AEA Support - Direct to AEA 36] $ 295,483.00 | $ 104,560.40

*Total Other Expenditures (lines 34-36) 36A| S 1,426,492.00 | $ 428,726.49 (997,765.51)
Total Expenditures 370 $ 9,587,492.00 | §  3,616,162.50

Transfers Out 38] $ 313,178.00 | § 219,177.50

Other Uses 39 § - $ -

Total Expenditures & Other Uses 40] $ 9,900,670.00 | $ 3,835,340.00

Ending Fund Balance 411 $ 6,391,351.27 | $  7,311,710.62

Total Requirements 4219 16,292,021.27 [ $ 11,147,050.62

This report shows the district's progress towards staying on budget according to the certified budget
published and approved. The expenditures with * must stay below the budgeted amount to avoid
having to revise the budget by May 31st of each fiscal year. Revenues and expenses will continue
for the fiscal year until the Certified Annual Report (CAR) is completed in September.




SBRC Application for At-Risk/Dropout MSA

From School Business Alert: The purpose of the requested MSA is to provide additional resources for the 2022-2023
school year that are necessary to implement the at-risk, dropout prevention, and returning dropout services for
identified students that are included in the local school board’s adopted plan. The purpose is not for increasing
regular program spending authority.

# Description Amount
1 |District cost per pupil $7,227
2 |Certified enrollment (October 1, current school year) 552.5
Certified enroliment was found and certified on 10/15/2021 12:41:08 PM,
3 |Maximum modified supplemental amount possible (0.033 x line 1 x line 2) $131,766
4 |Previous FY Carry-forward from CAR $0

Project 1116 Carry-forward: $0
Project 1119 Carry-forward: $0

5 |Requested modified supplemental amount $131,766
Enter an amount equal to, or less than (Ln3 - Ln4): $131,766

"Requested MSA and required match (and the associated spending authority) is solely for the
purpose of implementing the district’s board-adopted At-Risk/Dropout program.”

6 |Required local match (Total Project Cost(Line 5/ 0.75) X 0.25) $43,922

7 |Enter the number of enrolled students in the budget year identified as returning
dropouts and potential dropouts.

The amount is calculated based on the finalized Fall Certified Enrollment numbers. There will be
no increase in taxes and we do not receive more money from the state.

Motion to approve:

I move that the Board of Directors of the East Buchanan Community
School District approve the application to the School Budget Review
Committee in the amount of $_131.766.00 for At-Risk/Dropout Prevention
for the 2022-2023 school year.

Motion by:

Second by:

Submit to IDOE:



)

Current fleet includes:

BUS BIDS

Year Make Fuel Capacity Purchase Price Purchased from Date
2012 Bluebird Diesel 78 $ 84,843 School Bus Sales 12/6/2010
2015 Bluebird Diesel 78 $ 93,643 School Bus Sales 11/13/2013
2015 ICCE Diesel 65 $ 79,259 Hoglund Bus Co  8/15/2014
2018 Bluebird Gas 77 $ 86,703 School Bus Sales 11/22/2016
2020 ICCE Diesel 71 $ 86,698 Hoglund Bus Co  8/23/2019
2020 Bluebird Diesel 71 $ 85,315 School Bus Sales 10/19/2018
2022 ICCE Diesel 71 $ 96,579 Hoglund Bus Co  12/11/2020
2017 ICCE Diesel 65 $ 59,999 if purchase Hoglund Bus Co  Oct 2021
(currently lease)
2017 ICCE Diesel 65 $ 64,065 if purchase  Hoglund Bus Co  Oct 2021
(currently lease)
2023 ICCE Diesel 71 $102,899 - not yet Hoglund Bus Co
delivered
Bids received from:
Vendor Year-Model Fuel Seated | Quote
Hoglund Bus Co 2023 IC CE 71 $107,959.00
School Bus Sales 2023 Blue Bird Diesel 71 $ 113,198.00

Rt b A A L L T T L L L T g Y e Ll i I L ey

“I make a motion to approve the bid from

$

for the quoted price of



HOGLUND BUS COMPANY

East Buchanan CSD
414 5t St, N.
Winthrop, IA 50682

Dear Adam Halford,

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you to resolve your transportation needs.

The prices listed below are for model year 2023.

In addition to your specs, IC offers many additional items at no extra cost which will lower
your cost of ownership.

Rust is always an issue, so we use 60% thicker side sheet steel (1.6 mm vs 1.00 mm)

than Thomas/Bluebird

50% more galvanizing prior to paint G-90 (IC) vs G60 (Thomas/Bluebird)

The widest entrance door at 33” and widest steps at 36” because everyone has a book
bag.

36” width non tapered step well for student safety

Four one piece rub rails with 3 wrap around for more strength (all sealed on the top)
All seat frames are seat belt ready so 4 different backs can be used without changing
frames.(built-in car seats, lap/shoulder, CRS/lap shoulder and regular)

3 Piece Hood for LCO and easy replacement in case of accident

Bendix ACTIVE Stability Control and Bendix traction Control

Only fully caged fuel tank under a school bus

Riveted Ceiling panels

IC body is fully riveted for safety, NOT GLUED

ALL drivers controls are forward of driver to keep eyes on the road

78” Headroom

Get what you wanted, and much more.

Order Out: 2023 IC CE

77 passenger SEATED 71

ISB 250HP / 660LB

2500 Allison

Air Brake

Rear Air Ride

LED pkg

REI 4 Camera system: 3 interior cameras, stop arm camera, event marker

$107,959.00

823 S. 19" Avenue, Marshalitown, 1A 50158
Main 641.753.7669 » Toll Free 877.752.4733 » Fax 641.753.7888
“Your Fleet Solutions Partner”
www.hoglundbus.com



e ScHooL Bus SaLes Co.

2023 Blue Bird 71 passenger-DIESEL-

CUSTOMER NAME: East Buchanan CSD DATE: 1/4/2022
ADDRESS: 414 5th Street North PHONE: (319)935-3767
CITY/ZIP CODE: Winthrop, IA 50682 CAPACITY: 7

BODY MODEL: BBCV3310 QUANTITY: 1

PRICE PER UNIT F.0.B. WATERLOO, IA $113,198.00
DELIVERY CHARGE PER UNIT TO WINTHROP, IOWA INCLUDED

SUBTOTAL PER UNIT $113,198.00

MULTIPLY BY 1 UNITS= TOTAL $113,198.00

LESS: TRADE IN UNITS

TRADE-IN VALUE $0.00

Pricing good for 40 days from quote date
TOTAL BID PRICE $113,198.00

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT TO BE ADDED TO TOTAL PRICE OF UNIT:

Grey one piece floor with studded step tread INCLUDED
Electric door with front and rear vandal locks INCLUDED
50K midship heater with heater booster pump INCLUDED
Alr drivers seat-RH/LH armrest/ Grey passenger seats INCLUDED
Dual Air stop arm-LED strobing/Air cross arm INCLUDED
Overhead emergency equip. compariment INCLUDED
250HP Cummins with Allison 2500pts INCLUDED
Rear alr suspension 23K/Rear axle 23K INCLUDED
100 galion fuel tank INCLUDED
LED exterior lights INCLUDED
8 Way LED strobing lights INCLUDED
REI camera system 3 Interlor and 1 exterior camera INCLUDED

NOTE: WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO NOT ACCEPT TRADE IN UNITS IF NOT IN THE SAME GENERAL
CONDITION AS WHEN APPRAISED.

NOTE: ALL QUOTATIONS ARE QUOTED WITH PAYMENTS DUE ON DELIVERY OF UNIT. IF DISTRICT
PICKS UP AT BODY PLANT, PAYMENT MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE UNIT WILL BE RELEASED.

SUBMITTED BY: ,/‘-fé"‘

Jon Andrews, Sales Representative

4537 Texas Street ¢ Waterloo, lowa 50702 ¢ 319-206-1363 * 1-800-772-2414



Code No. 403.7
Page 1 of 2

EMPLOYEE VACCINATION/TESTING FOR COVID-19

In an effort to comply with federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration requirements, the
district is requiring all employees to become fully vaccinated against COVID-19, or in the alternative to
produce weekly evidence of negative COVID-19 testing and utilize face coverings at work sites.

Vaccination

All employees are required to become fully vaccinated against COVID-19. Full vaccination occurs
when an employee has received both primary COVID-19 vaccination doses, or one single dose if the
vaccine only requires one dose, and have waited two weeks following the last dose administered. This
requirement will become effective no later than Deeember6-202) January 10, 2022. Employees who
have received full vaccination against COVID-19 must submit proof of vaccination no later than
December-6:2021 January 10, 2022. Employees who have not received both (if a vaccine requires a 2
dose regimen) primary doses of a COVID-19 vaccine will be required to comply with the testing and
face covering requirements of the section below. Employees who have received both primary doses of
the COVID-19 vaccine on or before Becember-6-2024 January 10, 2021, but who have not yet passed
the two-week waiting period for full vaccination efficacy are not required to comply with the testing and
face covering requirements of the section below.

['ace Coverings and Testing

Beginning Deeember-6,-202+ January 10, 2022, employees who do not wish to obtain vaccination
against COVID-19 must wear face coverings at all times while indoors, in a vehicle, or in another
enclosed space as described in detail in procedure 403.7R1. Beginning January 4, 2022, employees who
are not fully vaccinated must also provide proof of negative COVID-19 test results every 7 days.

Reasonable Accommodations

The vaccine requirement does not apply to employees for whom a vaccine is medically contraindicated;
for whom medical necessity requires a delay in vaccination; or who are legally entitled to a reasonable
accommodation due to a disability or sincerely held religious beliefs, practices or observances. If an
employee requires accommodation from any other part of the policy for medical or religious reasons,
the employee may request one. Qualifying employees will be expected to submit verification of one of
these exemptions in order to receive an accommaodation,

Employees who fail to abide by the requirements of this policy may face disciplinary action up to and
including termination. It is the obligation of the Superintendent to establish appropriate procedures
necessary to enforce this policy.

NOTE: This is a mandatory policy for districts which employ 100 or more employees, regardless of
Sull time or part time status. This should also include temporary employees such as substitute
teachers. For more information on this policy and supporting guidance, see IASB Policy Primer 30-
2,



Code No. 403.7
Page 2 of 2

Legal Reference: 29 C.F.R Part 1910.501
42 U.S.C. 12101
42 U.S.C. 2000e
34 C.F.R. pt. 100
34 C.F.R. pt. 104
Iowa Code ch. 216

Cross Reference: 403.3 Communicable Diseases

Approved Reviewed Revised



Code No. 403.7R1
Page 1 of 2

EMPLOYEE VACCINATION/TESTING FOR COVID-19 REGULATION

Acceptable Proof of Vaccination Status

To satisfy the vaccination requirement within this policy, employees must submit to the Superintendent

or Superintendent’s designee acceptable proof of vaccination status no later than Peeeniber-6-2021

January 10, 2022, Acceptable proof of vaccination status includes:

Immunization records from a healthcare provider or pharmacy;

A copy of a COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card,;

A copy of medical records documenting immunization;

A copy of immunization records from a public health, state or tribal immunization information

system;

5. Any other official documentation that contains the type of vaccine administered, dates of
administration, and the name of the administering health provider or clinic;

6. If any other records are unavailable a signed and dated personal attestation statement.

gD =

Any employee who fails to provide acceptable proof of vaccination status may face disciplinary action
up to and including termination.

Record Keeping
The district is requited by law to keep a roster of the vaccination status of all employees.
Any records showing proof of employee vaccination status the district maintained prior to NeverberS—

2024 January 10, 2022, will be considered sufficient proof of the employee’s vaccination status.

Any records related to an employee’s vaccination status, including the employee vaccination status
roster, will be considered confidential employee medical records not subject to public disclosure and
stored as employee medical records consistent with law. These records will be maintained by the
district for as long as 29 C.F.R. 1910.501 remains in effect.

Testing

Beginning January4,2022, February 9, 2022, employees who are not fully vaccinated must submit
proof of negative COVID-19 test results every 7 days. Documentation of negative test results must be
provided to the district no later than every 7 days. Employees who are not fully vaccinated and do not
report to work for longer than 7 days (ex. an employee on vacation or on leave) must provide
documentation of a negative test result upon their return to work. If the employee fails to provide proof
of a negative test result, the district must keep the employee removed from the workplace until the
negative test result documentation is provided.

Employees who receive a positive COVID-19 test result or have been diagnosed with COVID-19 by a
licensed healthcare provider; are not required to produce another test result for 90 days from the date of
their positive result.

Positive Test Results

Regardless of vaccination status, employees must report any positive COVID-19 test results or a
diagnosis of COVID-19 by a licensed healthcare provider to the district. Any employee so reporting
will be immediately removed from the workplace and will stay removed from the workplace until any of
the following occut:




- The employee receives a negative result on a COVID-19 nucleic acid amplification test
(NAAT) following a positive result on a COVID-19 antigen test if the employees chooses to
seek the confirmatory test

Code No. 403.7
Page 2 of 2

- The employee meets the return to work criteria in the CDC’s “Isolation Guidance” listed here:
https:// www.cde.govicoronavirus/20 1 9-ncov/your-health/quarantine-isolation. html
- The employee receives a recommendation to return to work from a licensed healthcare provider.

New Employees
New employees will be subject to the provisions of this policy upon hire as soon as practicable. Within

7 days of hire, new employees will provide proof of their vaccination status to the district in accordance
with the requirements of this policy. Unless fully vaccinated, new employees will abide by the testing
and face covering requirements of this policy within 7 days of hire.

Leave

As required by 29 C.F.R. 1910.501, the district will provide up to 4 hours of paid leave to cover the time
required to travel to and obtain each dose of the primary vaccination for COVID-19. If additional time
is required, the employee may use other accrued leave available. The district will also provide
reasonable paid sick leave to employees to recover from any effects of each primary dose of COVID-19
vaccine. The district may require employees to use previously accrued paid sick leave first.

Employees Excluded

Employees who work fully remote from the job site; employees working from home; and employees
who work exclusively outdoors are excluded from the vaccination, testing and face covering
requirements of this policy. Employees fully remote from the job site does not include employees
whose work requires them to work off site from the district but in the presence of students or employees
of the district. Employees who work exclusively outdoors means those individuals who do not spend
any part of their work time indoors,

Face Coverings

Beginning DeeemberS-2024 January 10, 2022, face coverings must be worn by all employees who
have not provided proof of full vaccination status to the district. Face coverings will be worn when
employees are working indoors, in vehicles or other enclosed spaces. Face coverings are not required to
be worn when employees are: working alone in a room with floor to ceiling walls and a closed door;
verifying identity for security purposes or eating/drinking; when an employee is wearing a respirator or
tacemask; or where the district can show that the use of a face covering is infeasible or creates a greater
hazard. The face covering must fully cover the employee’s nose and mouth; and be replaced when wet,
soiled or damaged.

Reporting Requirements of the District
The district will report to OSHA:
- Each work-related COVID-19 fatality within 8 hours of the employer learning about the
fatality;
- Each work-related COVID-19 inpatient hospitalization within 24 hours of the employer
learning about the inpatient hospitalization.

The district will report to individual employees or anyone having written authorized consent of the
employee by the end of the next business day after the request is made:
- Documentation of any COVID-19 test results for that employee;
- The aggregate number of fully vaccinated employees at a workplace along with the total
number of employees at that workplace.



The district will provide to the Assistant Secretary of Labor for Occupational Safety and Health, U.S.
Department of Labor, or their designee:

- A copy of this policy, and the aggregate number of fully vaccinated employees at a workplace
along with the total number of employees at that workplace, to be provided within 4 business
hours of the request being made; and

- All other records and supporting documents related to this policy by the end of the next business
day of the request being made.



Code No. 403.R2

REQUIRED NOTICES TO EMPLOYEES

For additional information on COVID-19 vaccine efficacy, safety, and the benefits of being
vaccinated, please consult the following document “Key Things to Know About COVID-19
Vaccines” https:/www.cde.gov/coronavirus/20 1 9-ncov/vaccines/keythingstoknow.html

29 C.F.R. 1904.34(b)(1)(iv) prohibits the employer from discharging or in any manner
discriminating against an employee for reporting a work-related injury or illness.

11(c) of the Occupational Safety and Health Act prohibits the employer from discriminating
against an employee for exercising rights under, or as a result of actions that are required by, this
policy. 11(c) also protects employees from retaliation by the employer for filing an occupational
safety or health complaint, reporting a work-related injury or illness, or otherwise exercising any
rights provided by the OSH Act.

18 U.S.C. 1001 and section 17(g) of the OSH Act provide for criminal penalties associated with
knowingly supplying false statements or documentation in accordance with this policy.



Code No. 403.7E1

EMPLOYEE PERSONAL ATTESTATION OF VACCINATION STATUS

as an employee of the District do personally attest to the following:

My vaccination status for COVID-19 is [fully vaccinated or partially
vaccinated)].

To the best of my recollection, I can provide the following information about my vaccination
status: [type of vaccine administered, date(s) of
administration, name of health care providers and clinic site]

I have lost proof of my vaccination status and am otherwise unable to provide proof of my
vaccination status.

I declare that this statement about my vaccination status is true and accurate. I understand that
knowingly providing false information regarding my vaccination status on this form may
subject me to criminal penalties.

Employee Date



Code No. 403.7E2

MEDICAL ACCOMMODATION REQUEST FORM

Date:

Employee Name:

Email Address:

Position/Job Title;

Employee Telephone Number:

Employment Location;

(1) What is the basis for the medical accommodation that you are requesting?

(2) What are you requesting an accommodation from?

Item Yes/No
Vaccination for COVID-19
Testing for COVID-19
Use of Face Coverings

Employee Signature Date

Office Use
This request has been:

Approved Denied

Administrator Date



Code No. 403.7E3

RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION REQUEST FORM

Date:

Employee Name:

Email Address:

Position/Job Title:

Employee Telephone Number:

Employment Location:

(3) Please identify the policy requirement or practice that conflicts with your sincerely held religious
observance, practice or belief:

(4) Please describe the nature of your sincerely held religious beliefs or religious practice or observance that
conflict with the policy or practice you have identified above:

(5) What are you requesting an accommodation from?

Item Yes/No

Vaccination for COVID-19

Testing for COVID-19

Use of Face Coverings

Employee Signature Date

Office Use
This request has been:

Approved Denied

Administrator Date



POLICY REVIEW

2"Y Reading

3 ok ok ok ok ok i ok ok ol sk ok 2k Sk 3k ok ok sk ok ole ok ok ok ok sk sk ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok e 3k

Current EB policy is marked with changes based on the current IASB policy reference manual
Wording to be removed is erossed-aut

Additions are in bold and underlined

Decisions to be made are highlighted

Optional wording is in [italics and brackets]

ok ok o ok skl sk 3k ok sk sk 3k ok ke e sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok sk ok

Policy Code Signs & Symbols:

-R This symbol following a policy code number indicates the statement is an administrative regulation
rather than a board policy

-E This symbol following a policy code number indicates the statement is an exhibit rather than a board
policy.

Legal Reference  This sign indicates the legal references. They tell the user where they may find the statutes, case
law, attorney general opinions, or administrative rules that give authority to a policy.

Cross Reference  Many policies in the manual relate to other policies in the manual. Cross references are provided to
assist the user in finding all of the related policies.



Source: IASB Policy Updates — June 26, 2020
409.1—Employee Vacation-Holidays

This sample policy has been updated to reflect the rescission of the standalone
employee leave sample policies. The policy itself continues to cover employee
vacation and holidays, which is a separate category from employee leave.

New 409.2—Employee Leave of Absence

This sample policy was created to consolidate the different categories of
employee leave into one policy, bringing all board-level information on employee
leave into one location. The administrative procedures related to requesting and
granting each type of leave can be found in the IASB Employee Handbook Toolkit.

409.3, 409.3E1, 409.3E2, 409.3R1, 409.3R2 — Employee Family and Medical Leave

Previously, IASB had identical Family and Medical leave policies for licensed and

classified staff, located in different areas of the Policy Reference Manual. In order
to make the Family and Medical Leave sample policy more accessible, it has been
consolidated into one policy for all employees.

414 - Classified Employee Professional Purposes Leave

No changes have been made to the body of this policy. It has been renumbered
for greater alignment in the Policy Reference Manual.

Rescinded— 409.4-409.8; 414.1-414.8—Leave Policies

Due to creating the new, consolidated IASB sample policy 409.2 — Employee
Leave of Absence, these individual sample policies have been rescinded.
Detailed information on benefits has been moved to the updated IASB Employee
Handbook Toolkit. This change is intended to clarify for your district where
information on all employee leave benefits can be found quickly and efficiently.



Code No. 409.1

LICENSED EMPLOYEE VACATION - HOLIDAYS —PERSONAL LEAVE

The board will refer to the employee handbook for the amount of vacation, holidays, and personal leave
that will be allowed on an annual basis for licensed employees.

Code No. 414.-1409.1

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE VACATIONS - HOLIDAYS - PERSONAL LEAVE

The board will refer to the employee handbook for_the amount of vacation, holidays, and personal leave
that will be allowed on an annual basis for elassified-employees.

Classified employees will be paid only for the hours they would have been scheduled for the day.

HOLIDAYS:

* ClassifiedFull-time employees who are scheduled to work twelve months a year will be allowed
paid holidays plus one floating holiday according to the employee handbook. Refer to the
employee handbook for the dates that are designated as receiving holiday pay if the holiday
does not fall on a regular working day:.

* Classified employees who work only during the school year, whether full-time or part-time, will
have time off in concert with the school calendar and will be allowed paid holidays accoiding to
the employee handbook

e Teacher holidays are based on the board approved school calendar.

VACATIONS:
* Classified employees who work twelve months a year and who have served a full year (12 months)
are entitled to vacation with pay. Refer to the employee handbook for the number of vacation
days.

* Vacation will not be accrued from year to year without a prior arrangement with the
superintendent. The arrangement must be in writing, signed by both parties, and submitted to
the board secretary.

¢ Vacation days will not be paid out upon an employee’s resignation or termination.

PERSONAL LEAVE:

e Personal days will not be paid out upon an employee’s resignation or termination.

Legal Reference: Iowa Code §§ 1C; 4.1(34); 20.

Cross Reference: 4091—Classified-Employee Vacations—Helidays—Personal Leave
601.1  School Calendar

Approved: December 21, 2005
Reviewed : November 9, 2011; November 9, 2016
Revised: May 13, 2020 /

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Code No. 409.2

EMPLOYEE LEAVES OF ABSENCE

The board will offer the following leave to full-time regular licensed employees:
o Personal Illness (Sick) Leave — Leave for medically-related disability or illness
* Family Sick Leave_- Leave to care for a sick member of the employee’s immediate family
* Bereavement Leave — Leave to mourn the loss of a family member or close friend
s—[Adoption-Feave—Leave-for-air-employee-wheo-legally-adopts-a-child]
o—fPersonal-beave—Leaveto-aceomplish-personal-business-that-cannot-be-conducted-ontsidethe
wporleles]

e Jury Duty Leave — Leave to be excused for jury duty

e Military Leave — Leave for military service, including the national guard

e Political Leave — Leave to run for elective public office

e Unpaid Leave - To excuse an involuntary absence not provided for in other leave policies
of the board.

Fhe-board-will-offerthe-followingleave-to-full-time regular-classified-employees:
Muwewmwmwemmmyﬂ%

. ‘efor-asick-member-of-the-employees-immediatefamily]
%WW%M%&&WMW%&WW%M
%WW{WWM&

we#edaﬁ
o—Jury-Duty-Leave—leave-to-be-excused-for-jury-duty
s—Military-Leave—leave-for-military-service—ineluding the national-guard
s—Political-Leave—Leave-torunfor-elective-public-office

ot-the-board:
o finsertcdditioneal-leavef

The provisions of each leave offering will be detailed in the Master Contract, Employee’s Contract,
and/or Employee Handbook.

Leave offered by the district will not be less than what is required by law. In the event of an emergency or
unforeseen circumstance, the superintendent may authorize additional paid leave.

Legal Reference: 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq.
Pub.L. 116-127
29 C.F.R. §§ 825; 826.
Iowa Code §§ 20; 29A,; 55; 85; 216; 279.40; 607A.
Whitney v. Rural Ind. School District, 232 lowa 61, 4 N.W.2d 394 (1942).
Bewley v. Villisca Community School District, 299 N.W. 2d 904 (Iowa 1980).

Cross Reference: 403.2 Employee Injury on the Job
409.3 Employee Family and Medical Leave

Approved Reviewed Revised

© IASB POLICY REFERENCE MANUAL



Code No. 409.2

LICENSED EMPLOYEE PERSONAL ILLNESS LEAVE

Licensed employees will be granted ten days of sick leave in their first year of employment. Each year
thereafter, one additional day of sick leave will be granted to the licensed employees up to a maximum
of fifteen days. "Day" is defined as one work day regardless of full-time or part-time status of the
employee. A new employee will report for work at least one full work day prior to receiving sick leave
benefits. A returning employee will be granted the appropriate number of days at the beginning of each
fiscal year,

Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 125 days for licensed employees.

Evidence may be required regarding the mental or physical health of the employee when the
administration has a concern about the employee's health. Evidence may also be required to confirm the
employee's illness, the need for the illness leave, the employee's ability to return to work, and the
employee's capability to perform the duties of the employee's position. It is within the discretion of the
board or the superintendent to determine the type and amount of evidence necessary. When an illness
leave will be greater than three consecutive days, the employee will comply with the board policy
regarding family and medical leave.

W) o\(duyzﬁ nnoved. o Emp\%u_ﬁ’(‘]/\(\d«b oslC

( wrerent (\Po\Icﬂ MQ\MU( W +h
Emp\ouéle Legutn of AbSence

Legal Reference: 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq.
29 C.F.R. § 825.
Iowa Code §§ 20; 85; 216; 279.40.
Whitney v. Rural Ind. School District, 232 Towa 61, 4 N.W.2d 394 (1942).

Cross Reference: 403.2 Employee Injury on the Job
409.3 Licensed Employee Family and Medical Leave
409.8 Licensed Employee Unpaid Leave

Approved: June 14, 2006
Reviewed: May 18, 2011; January 9, 2019
Revised:  January 9, 2019

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 414.2

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE PERSONAL ILLNESS LEAVE

Classified employees shall be granted ten (10) days of sick leave in their first year of employment. Each year
thereafter, one additional day of sick leave will be granted to the employees up to a maximum of fifteen days.
"Day" is defined as one work day regardless of full-time or part-time status of the employee. A new employee
will report for work at least one full work day prior to receiving sick leave benefits. A returning employee will
be granted the appropriate number of days at the beginning of each fiscal year.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 125 days for classified employees.

Should the personal illness occur after or extend beyond the sick leave accumulated allowance, the employee
may apply for disability benefits under the group insurance plan. If the employee does not qualify for disability
benefits, the employee may request a leave of absence without pay.

Evidence may be required regarding the mental or physical health of the employee including, but not limited
to, confirmation of the following: the employee's illness, the need for the illness leave, the employee's ability to
return to work, and the employee's capability to perform the duties of the employee's position. It is within the
discretion of the board or the superintendent to determine the type and amount of evidence necessary. When an
illness leave will be greater than three consecutive days, the employee will comply with board policy regarding
family and medical leave.

If an employee is eligible to receive workers' compensation benefits, the employee will contact the board
secretary to implement these benefits.

Wordin wovad + Ewgployee Frandbook.

L ot po\tcg M()[(Mﬂd e
Bmp\ﬁﬂea Leavas of Absence

Legal Reference: Whitney v. Rural Ind. School District, 232 Towa 61, 4 N.W.2d 394 (1942).
29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 ef seq.
29 C.F.R. Pt. 825
lowa Code §§ 20; 85.33, .34, .38(3); 279.40.

Cross Reference: 403.2 Employee Injury on the Job
414.3 Classified Employee Family and Medical Leave
414.8 Classified Employee Unpaid Leave

Approved: December 21, 2005
Reviewed: November 9, 2016
Revised: May 13, 2020

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Code No. 409.4

LICENSED EMPLOYEE BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

The board will refer to the employee handbook regarding licensed employee bereavement leave.

Code No, 414.4

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

The board will refer to the employee handbook regarding licensed employee bereavement leave.

Legal Reference: Towa Code §§ 20; 279.8.
Cross Reference: 414 Classified Employee Vacations and Leaves of Absence
Approved: December 21, 2005

Reviewed: November 9, 2016
Revised: May 13, 2020



Code No. 409.5

LICENSED EMPLOYEE POLITICAL LEAVE

The board will provide a leave of absence to licensed employees to run for elective public office. The
superintendent will grant a licensed employee a leave of absence to campaign as a candidate for an
elective public office as unpaid leave.

The licensed employee will be entitled to one period of leave to run for the elective public office, and
the leave may commence within thirty days of a contested primary, special, or general election and
continue until the day following the election.

The request for leave must be in writing to the superintendent of schools at least thirty days prior to the
starting date of the requested leave.

Code No. 414.5

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE POLITICAL LEAVE

The board will provide a leave of absence to classified employees to run for elective public office. The
superintendent will grant a classified employee a leave of absence to campaign as a candidate for an elective
public office as unpaid leave.

The classified employee will be entitled to one period of leave to run for the elective public office, and the
leave may commence any time within thirty days of a contested primary, special, or general election and
continue until the day following the election.

The request for leave must be in writing to the superintendent at least thirty days prior to the starting date of the
requested leave.

\QQS&A&L&"\QMQ ’rt%pQ, P\MQdTn oA

\A)orch(\o p\ace_d in Emploges Handbook
detpwa%mph"vm&dﬁ;i‘\vw{m

Legal Reference: Towa Code ch. 55



Code No. 409.6
LICENSED EMPLOYEE JURY DUTY LEAVE
The board will allow licensed employees to be excused for jury duty unless extraordinary circumstances
exist. The superintendent has the discretion to determine when extraordinary circumstances exist.
Employees who are called for jury service will notify the direct supervisor within twenty-four hours
after notice of call to jury duty and suitable proof of jury service pay must be presented to the school
district. The employee will report to work within one hour on any day when the employee is excused

from jury duty during regular working hours.

Licensed employees will receive their regular salary. Any payment for jury duty will be paid to the
school district.

Code No. 414.6

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE J URY DUTY

The board will alan employees to be excused for jury duty unless extraordinary circumstances exist.
The superintendent has the discretion to determine when extraordinary circumstances exist. »

Employees who are called for jury service will notify the direct supervisor within twenty-four hours after notice
of call to jury duty and suitable proof of jury service pay must be presented to the school district. The
employee will report to work within one hour on any day when the employee is excused from jury duty during
regular working hours.

Glassified employees will receive their regular salary. Any payment for jury duty is turned over to the school
district.

Legal Reference: Towa Code §§ 20.9; 607A.
Cross Reference: 414  Classified Employee Vacations and Leaves of Absence
Approved: December 21, 2005

Reviewed: November 9, 2016
Revised: May 13,2020

Restinde bi- \Qo\vm‘kﬁpu 0ddad 4o YO

\oo«&t%%m @\acadt "\ Qm()\ud,eq_ Hondbos



Code No. 409.7

-HIEENSED EMPLOYEE MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE

The board recognizes keensed employees may be called to participate in the armed forces, including the
national guard. If a heensed-employee is called to serve in the armed forces, the employee will have a
leave of absence for military service until the military service is completed.

The leave is without loss of status or efficiency rating, and without loss of pay during the first thirty
calendar days of the leave. o

Code No. 414.7

CSEASSHHED EMPLOYEE MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE

The board recognizes relassified employees may be called to participate in the armed forces, including the -
National Guard. If a classiffed-employee is called to serve in the armed forces, the employee shall have a leave
of absence for military service until the military service is completed. :

The leave is without loss of status or efficiency rating, and without loss of pay during the first thirty calendar
uays of the leave. :

Rustinduadd. - | gt Hype +o beaddsel to Policg 013,
momwmp\uw in Emplogee frrbook.

/

Legal Reference: Bewley v. Villisca Communitv School District. 299 N.W. 24 904 (Tawa 198M



Code No. 409.8

[HGENSED EMPLOYEE UNPAID LEAVE
The board will refer to the employee handbook regardingdicensed employee unpaid leave.
Legal Reference: Iowa Code §§ 20; 85; 85A; 85B; 279.12; 509; 509A; 509B.
Cross Reference: 409  Licensed Employee Vacations and Leaves of Absence
Approved: June 14, 2006

Reviewed: May 18, 2011
Revised : January 9, 2019

Code No. 414.8

CCASSIFIED'EMPLOYEE UNPAID LEAVE

Unpaid leave may be used to excuse an involuntary absence not provided for in other leave policies. Unpaid
leave for elassifted-employees must be authorized by the superintendent. Whenever possible, efassified-
employees will make a written request for unpaid leave ten days prior to the beginning date of the requested
leave. If the leave is granted, the deductions in salary are made unless they are waived specifically by the
superintendent. : - '

The superintendent will have complete discretion to grant or deny the requested unpaid leave. In making this
determination, the superintendent will consider the effect of the employee's absence on the education program
and school district operations, the financial condition of the school district, length of service, previous record of
absence, the reason for the requested absence and other factors the superintendent believes are relevant in
making this determination.

If unpaid leave is granted, the duration of the leave period is coordinated with the scheduling of the education
program whenever possible, to minimize the disruption of the education program and school district operations.
Legal Reference: Iowa Code Sect. 20.9; 279.8

Cross Reference: 414 Classified Employee Vacations and Leaves of Absence

Approved December 21, 2005

Reviewed November 9, 2016
Revised: May 13, 2020

Reschd - leave type placed 'n Y09 Q.
Wordteg added o Erplogee  Handbook.



Code No. 409.3

HICENSED-EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Unpaid family and medical leave will be granted up to 12 weeks per year to assist employees in
balancing family and work life. For purposes of this policy, year is defined as July 1 through June 30 of
each year . Requests for family and medical leave will be made to the superintendent.

Employees may be allowed to substitute paid leave for unpaid family and medical leave by meeting the
requirements set out in the family and medical leave administrative rules. Employees eligible for family
and medical leave must comply with the family and medical leave administrative rules prior to starting
family and medical leave. It is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative rules to
implement this policy.

Links: WH-380-E Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condition (PDF)
WH-380-F Certification of Health Care Provider for Family Member's Serious Health Condition
(PDF)
WH-381 Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities (PDF)
WH-382 Designation Notice (PDF)
WH-384 Certification of Qualifying Exigency For Military Family Leave (PDF)
WH-385 Certification for Serious Injury or Illness of Covered Servicemember -- for Military
Family Leave (PDF)

https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fmlaen.pdf

Legal Reference: 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 ef seq.
29 CF.R. § 825
Iowa Code §§ 20; 85; 216; 279.40.
Whitney v. Rural Ind. School. District, 232 Towa 61, 4 N.W.2d 394 (1942).

Cross Reference: 409.2  Lieensed-Employee Personaltness-Leave of Absence
409:8—L-icensed-Lmployee-Unpaid-Leave
— 43 —Classified-Bmployee Family-and Medieal Leave

Approved: June 14, 2006
Reviewed: May 18, 2011; January 9, 2019
Revised: January 12, 2022

East Buchanan Community School District



Code Ng.ﬂ'm
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL ;EAVEJ

Unpaid family and medical leave will be granted up to 12 wggk&"}iéi‘ year to assist employees in
balancing family and work life. For purposes of this poliey; year is defined as 365 days from the date of
the first absence. Requests for family and medical leave are made to the superintendent.

Employees may be allowed to substilutg__ps;i'a leave for unpaid family and medical leave by meeting the
requirements set out in the family andmedical leave administrative rules. Employees eligible for family
and medical leave must comply-with the family and medical leave administrative rules prior to starting
family and medical Ieav;,.fh/is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative rules to
implement this policy”

-

/ Rescindad, - Ceplaced wf updated 409.3

Links: WH-380-E Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condftionf{%F)
WH-380-F Certification of Health Care Provider for Family Member’s Serious HealtbeEndition

WH-381 Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities (PDF) sl

WH-382 Designation Notice (PDF) Ee
WH-384 Certification of Qualifying Exigency For Military Family Lea-v{(PDF)

WH-385 Certification for Serious Injury or Illness of Covered Sefvicemember -- for Military
Family Leave (PDF)

o
Legal Reference: Whitney v. Rural Ind. School. District, 232 lowa 61,4 N.W.2d 394 (1942).
29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq.
29 C.F.R. Pt. 825 ~
Iowa Code §§ 20, %5)3’3434, 38(3); 216; 279.40.
=

~

-
A

o

Cross Reference: 409.2 /Licensed Employee Personal Illness Leave
9‘9/.; Licensed Employee Family and Medical Leave
409.8 Licensed Employee Unpaid Leave

Approved? December 21, 2005
y wed: November 9, 2016; May 13, 2020

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Page 3 — E. Entitlement — 2. Year must be defined as in 409.3

A.

B.

Code No. 409.3R1
Page 1 of 5

LICENSED-EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REGULATION

School district notice.

1. The school district will post the notice in Exhibit 409.3E1 regarding family and medical leave.

2. Information on the Family and Medical Leave Act and the board policy on family and medical leave,
including leave provisions and employee obligations will be provided annually. The information will be
in the employee handbook.

3. When an employee requests family and medical leave, the school district will provide the employee with
information listing the employee's obligations and requirements. Such information will include:

a.

a statement clarifying whether the leave qualifies as family and medical leave and will, therefore, be
credited to the employee's annual 12-week entitlement or 26 week entitlement depending on the
purpose of the leave;

a reminder that employees requesting family and medical leave for their serious health condition or
for that of an immediate family member must furnish medical certification of the serious health
condition and the consequences for failing to do so or proof of call to active duty in the case of
military family and medical leave;

an explanation of the employee's right to substitute paid leave for family and medical leave including
a description of when the school district requires substitution of paid leave and the conditions related
to the substitution; and

a statement notifying employees that they must pay and must make arrangements for paying any
premium or other payments to maintain health or other benefits.

Eligible employees.
Employees are eligible for family and medical leave if three criteria are met.

1.
2.

3.

The school district has more than 50 employees on the payroll at the time leave is requested;

The employee has worked for the school district for at least twelve months or 52 weeks (the months
and weeks need not be consecutive); and

The employee has worked at least 1,250 hours within the previous year. Full-time professional
employees who are exempt from the wage and hour law may be presumed to have worked the
minimum hour requirement.

If the employee requesting leave is unable to meet the above criteria, then the employee is not eligible for
family and medical leave.

1.

a.

b.

Employee requesting leave -- two types of leave.

Foreseeable family and medical leave.

Definition - leave is foreseeable for the birth or placement of an adopted or foster child with the
employee or for planned medical treatment.

Employee must give at least thirty days notice for foreseeable leave. Failure to give the notice may
result in the leave beginning thirty days after notice was received. For those taking leave due to
military family and medical leave, notice should be given as soon as possible.

Employees must consult with the school district prior to scheduling planned medical treatment leave
to minimize disruption to the school district. The scheduling is subject to the approval of the health
care provider.

East Buchanan Community School District



Page 3 — E. Entitlement — 2. Year must be defined as in 409.3

Code No. 409.3R1
Page 2 of 5

Unforeseeable family and medical leave.

a.

b.

C.

Definition - leave is unforeseeable in such situations as emergency medical treatment or premature
birth.

Employee must give notice as soon as possible but no later than one to two work days after learning
that leave will be necessary.

A spouse or family member may give the notice if the employee is unable to personally give notice.

D. Eligible family and medical leave determination. The school district may require the employee giving notice
of the need for leave to provide reasonable documentation or a statement of family relationship.

1.

Six purposes.

The birth of a son or daughter of the employee and in order to care for that son or daughter prior to
the first anniversary of the child's birth;

The placement of a son or daughter with the employee for adoption or foster care and in order to
care for that son or daughter prior to the first anniversary of the child's placement;

To care for the spouse, son, daughter or parent of the employee if the spouse, son, daughter or
parent has a serious health condition; or

Employee's serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential
functions of the employee's position.

Because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that an employee’s _ spouse __ son or
daughter; _ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in support of a contingency
operation as a member the National Guard or Reserves.

because the employee is the spouse; son or daughter; parent; next of kin of a

covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

Medical certification.

When required:

(1) Employees shall be required to present medical certification of the employee's serious health
condition and inability to perform the essential functions of the job.

(2) Employees shall be required to present medical certification of the family member's serious
health condition and that it is medically necessary for the employee to take leave to care for
the family member.

(3) Employees shall be required to present certification of the call to active duty when taking
military family and medical leave.,

Employee's medical certification responsibilities:

(1) The employee must obtain the certification from the health care provider who is treating the
individual with the serious health condition.

(2) The school district may require the employee to obtain a second certification by a health care
provider chosen by and paid for by the school district if the school district has reason to doubt
the validity of the certification an employee submits. The second health care provider cannot,
however, be employed by the school district on a regular basis.

(3) Ifthe second health care provider disagrees with the first health care provider, then the school
district may require a third health care provider to certify the serious health condition. This

East Buchanan Community School District



Page 3 - E. Entitlement — 2. Year must be defined as in 409.3

health care provider must be mutually agreed upon by the employee and the school district and
paid for by the school district. This certification or lack of certification is binding upon both
the employee and the school district.

Code No. 409.3R1
Page 3 of 5

¢.  Medical certification will be required fifteen days after family and medical leave begins unless it is
impracticable to do so. The school district may request recertification every
thirty days. Recertification must be submitted within fifteen days of the school district's request.
d.  Employees taking military caregiver family and medical leave to care for a family service member
cannot be required to obtain a second opinion or to provide recertification.

Family and medical leave requested for the serious health condition of the employee or to care for a family
member with a serious health condition which is not supported by medical certification will be denied until
such certification is provided.

Entitlement.

I Employees are entitled to twelve weeks unpaid family and medical leave per year. Employees taking
military caregiver family and medical leave to care for a family service member are entitled to 26 weeks
of unpaid family and medical leave but only in a single 12 month period.

2. Year is defined as fiscal year.

3. Ifinsufficient leave is available, the school district may:

a.  Deny the leave if entitlement is exhausted

b.  Award leave available

c.  Award leave in accordance with other provisions of board policy or the collective bargaining
agreement.

Type of Leave Requested.
I. Continuous - employee will not report to work for set number of days or weeks.
2. Intermittent - employee requests family and medical leave for separate periods of time.
a.  Intermittent leave is available for:
birth of my child or adoption or foster care placement subject to agreement by the district;
serious health condition of myself, spouse, parent, or child when medically necessary;
because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my  spouse; __ son or
daughter; __ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in support of a
contingency operation as a member of the National Guard or Reserves;
because l am the ___ spouse;  son or daughter; _ parent;  next of kin of a
covered service member with a serious injury or illness.
b.  In the case of foreseeable intermittent leave, the employee must schedule the leave to minimize
disruption to the school district operation.
¢ During the period of foreseeable intermittent leave, the school district may move the employee to an
alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits. (For instructional employees, see G below.)

3. Reduced work schedule - employee requests a reduction in the employee's regular work schedule.

a.  Reduced work schedule family and medical leave is available for:
Birth of my child or adoption or foster care placement subject to agreement by the district;
Serious health condition of the employee, spouse, parent, or child when medically necessary

___ Because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my __ spouse; _ son or
daughter; _ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in support of a contingency
operation as a member of the National Guard or Reserves;

_ Because Iamthe ___ spouse; _ son or daughter;  parent; _ next of kin of a covered

service member with a serious injury or illness.

East Buchanan Community School District



Page 3 — E. Entitlement — 2. Year must be defined as in 409.3

b.  In the case of foreseeable reduced work schedule leave, the employee must schedule the leave to
minimize disruption to the school district operation.

¢.  During the period of foreseeable reduced work schedule leave, the school district may move the
employee to an alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits. (For instructional employees,
see G below.)

Code No. 409.3R1
Page 4 of 5

G. Special Rules for Instructional Employees.

Definition - an instructional employee is one whose principal function is to teach and instruct students in
a class, a small group or an individual setting. This includes, but is not limited to, teachers, coaches,
driver's education instructors and special education assistants.

Instructional employees who request foreseeable medically necessary intermittent or reduced work

schedule family and medical leave greater than twenty percent of the work days in the leave period may

be required to:

a.  Take leave for the entire period or periods of the planned medical treatment; or

b.  Move to an available alternative position, with equivalent pay and benefits, but not necessarily
equivalent duties, for which the employee is qualified.

Instructional employees who request continuous family and medical leave near the end of a semester may
be required to extend the family and medical leave through the end of the semester. The number of
weeks remaining before the end of a semester do not include scheduled school breaks, such as summer,
winter or spring break.

a.  Ifan instructional employee begins family and medical leave for any purpose more than five weeks
before the end of a semester, the school district may require that the leave be continued until the end
of the semester if the leave will last at least three weeks and the employee would return to work
during the last three weeks of the semester if the leave was not continued.

b.  If the employee begins family and medical leave for a purpose other than the employee's own
serious health condition during the last five weeks of a semester, the school district may require that
the leave be continued until the end of the semester if the leave will last more than two weeks and
the employee would return to work during the last two weeks of the semester.

c.  Ifthe employee begins family and medical leave for a purpose other than the employee's own
serious health condition during the last three weeks of the semester and the leave will last more than
five working days, the school district may require the employee to continue taking leave until the
end of the semester.

The entire period of leave taken under the special rules is credited as family and medical leave. The
school district will continue to fulfill the school district's family and medical leave responsibilities and
obligations, including the obligation to continue the employee's health insurance and other benefits, if an
instructional employee's family and medical leave entitlement ends before the involuntary leave period
expires.

H. Employee responsibilities while on family and medical leave.

1.

Employee must continue to pay health care benefit contributions or other benefit contributions regularly
paid by the employee unless employee elects not to continue the benefits.

East Buchanan Community School District



Page 3 — E. Entitlement — 2. Year must be defined as in 409.3

2.

The employee contribution payments will be deducted from any money owed to the employee or the
employee will reimburse the school district at a time set by the superintendent.

An employee who fails to make the health care contribution payments within thirty days after they are
due will be notified that their coverage may be canceled if payment is not received within an additional
15 days.

Code No. 409.3R1
Page 5 of 5

An employee may be asked to re-certify the medical necessity of family and medical leave for the serious
medical condition of an employee or family member once every thirty days and return the certification
within fifteen days of the request.

The employee must notify the school district of the employee's intent to return to work at least once each
month during their leave and at least two weeks prior to the conclusion of the family and medical leave.

If an employee intends not to return to work, the employee must immediately notify the school district, in
writing, of the employee's intent not to return. The school district will cease benefits upon receipt of this
notification.

I. Use of paid leave for family and medical leave.

An employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave for the serious health condition of the
employee with paid sick, vacation and personal leave. Upon the expiration of paid leave, the family and
medical leave for the serious health condition of the employee is unpaid.

An employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave for the serious health condition of an
employee's family member or to care for a family service member with paid sick, vacation and personal
leave. Upon the expiration of paid leave, the family and medical leave for the serious health condition of
an employee's family member is unpaid.

An employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave for the birth of a child of the employee and
in order to care for that child prior to the first anniversary of the child's birth with sick, vacation and

personal leave. Upon the expiration of paid leave, the family and medical leave for the birth of a child of
the employee and in order to care for that child prior to the first anniversary of the child's birth is unpaid.

An employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave for the placement of a child with the
employee for adoption or foster care and in order to care for that child prior to the first anniversary of the
child's placement or adoption with sick, vacation and personal leave. Upon the expiration of paid leave,
the family and medical leave for the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care
and in order to care for the child prior to the first anniversary of the child's placement or adoption is
unpaid.

An employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave when a family service member is called to
active duty or on call to active duty with sick, vacation and personal leave. Upon expiration of the paid

leave, the leave is unpaid.

When the school district determines that paid leave is being taken for an FMLA reason, the school district
will notify the employee within two business days that the paid leave will be counted as FMLA leave.

East Buchanan Community School District



C@YYUO\\(\M Wik HO.2K| Code No. 414.3R1

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REGULATIO

A. School district notice.

1. The school district will post the notice in Exhibit 414.3E1 regarding family andhedical leave.
2. Information on the Family and Medical Leave Act and the board policy on faiily and medical
leave, including leave provisions and employee obligations will be provided annually. The

information will be in the employee handbook.

3. When an employee requests family and medical leave, the school distpict will provide the employee
with information listing the employee's obligations and requirement. Such information will
include:

a. a statement clarifying whether the leave qualifies as family/and medical leave and will,
therefore, be credited to the employee's annual 12-week«
depending on the purpose of the leave;

b. areminder that employees requesting family and medical leave for their serious health
condition or for that of an immediate family member must furnish medical certification of the
serious health condition and the consequences for failing to do so or proof of call to active duty
in the case of military family and medical leaVe;

c. an explanation of the employee's right to sdbstitute paid leave for family and medical leave
including a description of when the scho6! district requires substitution of paid leave and the
conditions related to the substitution; ahd

d. astatement notifying employees thaf they must pay and must make arrangements for paying
any premium or other payments t¢ maintain health or other benefits.

B. Eligible employees.

Employees are eligible for family and medical leave if three criteria are met.

I The school district has mére than 50 employees on the payroll at the time leave is requested;

2. The employee has worKed for the school district for at least twelve months or 52 weeks (the
months and weeks need not be consecutive); and,

3. The employee hagAvorked at least 1,250 hours within the previous year. Full-time professional
employees who dre exempt from the wage and hour law may be presumed to have worked the
minimum howrequirement.

If the employee requestir
and medical leave.

leave is unable to meet the above criteria, the employee is not eligible for family

C. Emplgyee requesting leave -- two types of leave,

Foreseeable family and medical leave.

a.  Definition - leave is foreseeable for the birth or placement of an adopted or foster child with
the employee or for planned medical treatment.

b.  Employee must give at least thirty days notice for foreseeable leave. Failure to give the notice
may result in the leave beginning thirty days after notice was received. For those taking leave
due to military family and medical leave, notice should be given as soon as possible.

¢.  Employees must consult with the school district prior to scheduling planned medical treatment
leave to minimize disruption to the school district. The scheduling is subject to the approval
of the health care provider.

Board Policy East Buchanan CSD



Code No. 409.3R2
Page 1 of 4

HEENSED-EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE DEFINITIONS

Active Duty — duty under a call or order to active duty under a provision of law referring to in section 101(a)(13) of
title 10, U.S. Code.

Common law marriage-according to lowa law, common law marriages exist when there is a present intent by the
two parties to be married, continuous cohabitation, and a public declaration that the parties are husband and wife.
There is no time factor that needs to be met in order for there to be a common law marriage.

Contingency Operation - has the same meaning given such term in section 101(a)(13) of title 10, U.S. Code.

Continuing treatment-a serious health condition involving continuing treatment by a health care provider includes

any one or more of the following:

* A period of incapacity (i.e., inability to work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities due to the
serious health condition, treatment for or recovery from) of more than three consecutive calendar days and any
subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition that also involves:

--  treatment two or more times by a health care provider, by a nurse or physician's assistant under direct
supervision of a health care provider, or by a provider of health care services (e.g., physical therapist)
under orders of, or in referral by, a health care provider; or

-~ treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing
treatment under the supervision of a the health care provider.

e Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care.

o Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition. A chronic
serious health condition is one which:

-~ requires periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider or by a nurse or physician's assistant under
direct supervision of a health care provider;

-~ Continues over an extended period of time (including recurring episodes of a single underlying
condition); and

-~ May cause episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity (e.g., asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, etc.).

®  Any period of incapacity which is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may not be
effective. The employee or family member must be under the continuing supervision of, but need not be
receiving active treatment by, a health care provider. Examples include Alzheimer's, a severe stroke or the
terminal stages of a disease.

*  Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments (including any petiod of recovery from) by a health care
provider or by a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by, a health care provider, either
for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition that would likely result in a period of
incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days in the absence of medical intervention or treatment,
such as cancer (chemotherapy, radiation, etc.), severe arthritis (physical therapy), kidney disease (dialysis).

Covered Servicemember — a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National
Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in
outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness.

Eligible Employee-the district has more than 50 employees on the payroll at the time leave is requested. The
employee has worked for the district for at least twelve months and has worked at least 1250 hours within the
previous year.

Essential Functions of the Job-those functions which are fundamental to the performance of the job. It does not
include marginal functions.

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 409.3R2
Page 2 of 4

HEENSED-EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE DEFINITIONS

Employment benefits-all benefits provided or made available to employees by an employer, including group life
insurance, health insurance, disability insurance, sick leave, annual leave, educational benefits, and pensions,
regardless of whether such benefits are provided by a practice or written policy of an employer or through an
"employee benefit plan."

Family Member-individuals who meet the definition of son, daughter, spouse or parent.

Group health plan-any plan of, or contributed to by, an employer (including a self-insured plan) to provide health
care (directly or otherwise) to the employer's employees, former employees, or the families of such employees or
former employees.

Health care provider-

e A doctor of medicine or osteopathy who is authorized to practice medicine or surgery by the state in which the
doctor practices; or

e  Podiatrists, dentists, clinical psychologists, optometrists, and chiropractors (limited to treatment consisting of
manual manipulation of the spine to correct a subluxation as demonstrated by X ray to exist) authorized to
practice in the state and performing within the scope of their practice as defined under state law; and

®  Nurse practitioners and nurse-midwives, and clinical social workers who are authorized to practice under state
law and who are performing within the scope of their practice as defined under state law; and

o Christian Science practitioners listed with the First Church of Christ Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts;

®  Any health care provider from whom an employer or a group health plan's benefits manager will accept
certification of the existence of a serious health condition to substantiate a claim for benefits;

® A health care provider as defined above who practices in a country other than the United States who is licensed
to practice in accordance with the laws and regulations of that country.

In loco parentis-individuals who had or have day-to-day responsibilities for the care and financial support of a child
not their biological child or who had the responsibility for an employee when the employee was a child.

Incapable of self-care-that the individual requires active assistance or supervision to provide daily self-care in
several of the "activities of daily living" or "ADLs." Activities of daily living include adaptive activities such as
caring appropriately for one's grooming and hygiene, bathing, dressing, eating, cooking, cleaning, shopping, taking
public transportation, paying bills, maintaining a residence, using telephones and directories, using a post office, etc.

[nstructional employee-an employee employed principally in an instructional capacity by an educational agency or
school whose principal function is to teach and instruct students in a class, a small group, or an individual setting,
and includes athletic coaches, driving instructors, and special education assistants such as signers for the hearing
impaired. The term does not include teacher assistants or aides who do not have as their principal function actual
teaching or instructing, nor auxiliary personnel such as counselors, psychologists, curriculum specialists, cafeteria
workers, maintenance workers, bus drivers, or other primarily noninstructional employees.

Intermittent leave-leave taken in separate periods of time due to a single illness or injury, rather than for one
continuous period of time, and may include leave or periods from an hour or more to several weeks.

Medically Necessary-certification for medical necessity is the same as certification for serious health condition.

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 409.3R2
Page 3 of 4

"Needed to Care For"-the medical certification that an employee is "needed to care for" a family member
encompasses both physical and psychological care. For example, where, because of a serious health condition, the
family member is unable to care for his or her own basic medical, hygienic or nutritional needs or safety or is unable
to transport himself or herself to medical treatment. It also includes situations where the employee may be needed
to fill in for others who are caring for the family member or to make arrangements for changes in care.

Next of Kin — an individual’s nearest blood relative

Outpatient Status — the status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to —
e Either a military medical treatment facility as an outpatient; or,
* A unitestablished for the purpose of providing command and control of members of the Armed Forces
receiving medical care as outpatients.

Parent-a biological parent or an individual who stands in loco parentis to a child or stood in loco parentis to an
employee when the employee was a child. Parent does not include parent-in-law,

Physical or mental disability-a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life
activities of an individual.

Reduced leave schedule-a leave schedule that reduces the usual number of hours per workweek, or hours per
workday, of an employee.

Serious health condition

e Anillness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves:

¢  Inpatient care (i.e. an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility including any
period of incapacity (for purposes of this section, defined to mean inability to work, attend school or perform
other regular daily activities due to the serious health condition, treatment for or recovery from), or any
subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care; or

*  Continuing treatment by a health care provider. A serious health condition involving continuing treatment by a
health care provider includes:

-- A period of incapacity (i.e., inability to work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities
due to the serious health condition, treatment for or recovery from) of more than three consecutive
calendar days, including any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same
condition, that also involves:

--  Treatment two or more times by a health care provider, by a nurse or physician's assistant
under direct supervision of a health care provider, or by a provider of health care services (e.g,,
physical therapist) under orders or, or on referral by, a health care provider; or
- Treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion which results in a regimen of
continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care provider.
-~ Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care.
-~ Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition. A
chronic serious health condition is one which:

-- Requires periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider or by a nurse or physician's assistant
under direct supervision of a health care provider;

--  Continues over an extended period of time (including recurring episodes of s single underlying
condition); and

-~ May cause episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity (e.g., asthma, diabetes, epilepsy,
etc.).

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 409.3R2
Page 4 of 4

-~ A period of incapacity which is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may not
be effective. The employee or family member must be under the continuing supervision of, but need not
be receiving active treatment by, a health care provider. Examples include Alzheimer's a severe stroke or
the terminal stages of a disease.

-- Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments (including any period of recovery from) by a health
care provider or by a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by, a health care
provider, either for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition that would
likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days in the absence of
medical intervention or treatment, such as cancer (chemotherapy, radiation, etc.), severe arthritis
(physical therapy), kidney disease (dialysis).

¢  Treatment for purposes of this definition includes, but is not limited to, examinations to determine if a serious
health condition exists and evaluation of the condition. Treatment does not include routine physical
examinations, eye examinations or dental examinations. Under this definition, a regimen of continuing
treatment includes, for example, a course of prescription medication (e.g., an antibiotic) or therapy requiring
special equipment to resolve or alleviate the health condition (e.g., oxygen). A regimen of continuing
treatment that includes the taking of over-the-counter medications such as aspirin, antihistamines, or salves; or
bed rest, drinking fluids, exercise and other similar activities that can be initiated without a visit to a health
care provider, is not, by itself, sufficient to constitute a regimen of continuing treatment for purposes of FMLA
leave.

*  Conditions for which cosmetic treatments are administered (such as most treatments for acne or plastic
surgery) are not "serious health conditions" unless inpatient hospital care is required or unless complications
develop. Ordinarily, unless complications arise, the common cold, the flu, ear aches, upset stomach, ulcers,
headaches other than migraine, routine dental or orthodontia problems, periodontal disease, etc., are examples
of conditions that do not meet the definition of a serious health condition and do not qualify for FMLA leave.
Restorative dental or plastic surgery after an injury or removal of cancerous growths are serious health
conditions provided all the other conditions of this regulation are met. Mental illness resulting from stress or
allergies may be serious health conditions, but only if all the conditions of this section are met.

®  Substance abuse may be a serious health condition if the conditions of this section are met. However, FMLA
leave may only be taken for treatment for substance abuse by a health care provider or by a provider of health
care on referral by a health care provider. On the other hand, absence because of the employee's use of the
substance, rather than for treatment, does not qualify for FMLA leave.

®  Absence attributable to incapacity under this definition qualify for FMLA leave even though the employee or
the immediate family member does not receive treatment from a health care provider during the absence, and
even if the absence does not last more than three days. For example, an employee with asthma may be unable
to report for work due to the onset of an asthma attack or because the employee's health care provider has
advised the employee to stay home when the pollen count exceeds a certain level. An employee who is
pregnant may be unable to report to work because of severe morning sickness.

Serious Injury or Illness — an injury or iliness incurred by a member of the Armed forces, including the National
Guard or Reserves in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces that may render the member medically
unfit to perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, or rating,

Son or daughter-a biological child, adopted child, foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child of a person standing
in loco parentis. The child must be under age 18 or, if over 18, incapable of self-care because of a mental or
physical disability.

Spouse-a husband or wife recognized by lowa law including common law marriages.

East Buchanan Community School District



Rootind - Crodoraed, with H09.3R2

Code No. 414.3R2
Page 1 of 4

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE DEFINITIONS
Active Duty - duty under a call or order to active duty under a provision of lay referring to in section
101(a)(13) of title 10, U.S. Code.

exist when there is a present intent
declaration that the parties are husband
ere to be a common law marriage.

Common Law Marriage - according to lowa law, common law marriag
by the two parties to be married, continuous cohabitation, and a publi
and wife. There is no time factor that needs to be met in order for t

Contingency Operation - has the same meaning given such ternyin section 101(a)(13) of title 10, U.S. Code.

Continuing Treatment - a serious health condition involvingontinuing treatment by a health care provider
includes any one or more of the following:
e A period of incapacity (i.e., inability to work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities due
to the serious health condition, treatment for or rgcovery from) of more than three consecutive calendar
days and any subsequent treatment or period of/incapacity relating to the same condition that also
involves:
--  treatment two or more times by a health care provider, by a nurse or physician's assistant under
direct supervision of a health care provider, or by a provider of health care services (e.g., physical
therapist) under orders of, or in referral by, a health care provider; or
--  treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing
treatment under the supervisighn of a the health care provider.

etc.).
apacity which is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may

not be effectivg/ The employee or family member must be under the continuing supervision of, but need

mgllical intervention or treatment, such as cancer (chemotherapy, radiation, etc.), severe arthritis
hysical therapy), kidney disease (dialysis).

Covered Servicemember - a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or
Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is
otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness.

Eligible Employee - the district has more than 50 employees on the payroll at the time leave is requested. The
employee has worked for the district for at least twelve months and has worked at least 1250 hours within the
previous year.

Essential Functions of the Job - those functions which are fundamental to the performance of the job. It does
not include marginal functions.

Board Policy East Buchanan Community School



Code No. -444409.3E 1

CELASSHIED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES

This document is available at https:/www.dol.eov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fimla.htm




Code No. 409.3E2
Page 1 of 2

HEENSEB-EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

Date:

I, . request family and medical leave for the following reason: (check all
that apply)

for the birth of my child;

for the placement of a child for adoption or foster care;

to care for my child who has a serious health condition;

to care for my parent who has a serious health condition;

to care for my spouse who has a serious health condition; or

because I am seriously ill and unable to perform the essential functions of my
position.

because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my __spouse; __ son or
daughter; ___parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in support of a
contingency operation as a member of the National Guard or Reserves.

because I am the ___ spouse; __ son or daughter; _ parent; __ next of kin of a
covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

I acknowledge my obligation to provide medical certification of my serious health condition or that of a
family member in order to be eligible for family and medical leave within 15 days of the request for
certification.

T acknowledge receipt of information regarding my obligations under the family and medical leave
policy of the school district.

[ request that my family and medical leave begin on and I request leave as
follows: (check one)

continuous
[ anticipate that I will be able to return to work on

intermittent leave for the:

birth of my child or adoption or foster care placement subject to agreement by
the district

serious health condition of myself, parent, or child when medically necessary

because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact thatmy __ spouse;

son or daughter; ___ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in
support of a contingency operation as a member of the National Guard or
Reserves.

because I am the __ spouse; __ son or daughter;  parent;  next of kin of

a covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

Details of the needed intermittent leave:

[ anticipate returning to work at my regular schedule on

Code No. 409.3E2

East Buchanan Community School District



Page 2 of 2

EIEENSED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

reduced work schedule for the:

birth of my child or adoption or foster care placement subject to agreement by
the school district

serious health condition of myself, parent, or child when medically necessary

because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my __ spouse;

son or daughter; __ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in

support of a contingency operation as a member of the National Guard or

Reserves.

because [ am the ___ spouse; ___son or daughter; __ parent; __ next of kin of

a covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

Details of needed reduction in work schedule as follows:

I anticipate returning to work at my regular schedule on

I realize | may be moved to an alternative position during the period of the family and medical
intermittent or reduced work schedule leave. I also realize that with foreseeable intermittent or reduced
work schedule leave, subject to the requirements of my health care provider, I may be required to
schedule the leave to minimize interruptions to school district operations.

While on family and medical leave, I agree to pay my regular contributions to employer sponsored
benefit plans. My contributions will be deducted from moneys owed me during the leave period. If no
monies are owed me, I will reimburse the school district by personal check or cash for my contributions.
['understand that I may be dropped from the employer-sponsored benefit plans for failure to pay my
contribution.

I agree to reimburse the school district for any payment of my contributions with deductions from future
monies owed to me or the school district may seek reimbursement of payments of my contributions in
court,

['acknowledge that the above information is true to the best of my knowledge.

Signed

Date

If the employee requesting leave is unable to meet the above criteria, the employee is not eligible for
family and medical leave.

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 414.3E2

FIED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

Date:

I, , request family and medical leave for the following reason:

(cheek all that apply)

for the birth of my child;

lor the placement of a child [or adoption or [bster care;

to care for my child who huas a serious health condition:

to eare for my parent who has a serious health condition;

to care [or my spouse who has a serious health condition; or

because | am seriously ill and unable to perform the essentiul ﬁ.tm‘-til. { nfy position.

beeause ol a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my %‘m 2 sonor
N

daughter; _ parent is on aclive duly or call to active duty sta port of a
contingeney aperation as a member of the National Guard or | ves.
because Tam the  spouse; sot or daughter; ent; next of kin of a

covered service member with a serious injury or illnegs
L

s health condition or that of a
in 15 days of the request for

I acknowledge my obligation to provide medical eertification of my ser
Fanuly wember in order to be eligible for family and medical lea

certification,

£

Facknowledge receipt ol information regarding my obligesidweunder the family and medical leave policy

of the school district. Q
f request that my family and medical leave lw& ﬁar o _and I request leave as follows:

(check one)
continuous @ Q«

rious health condition of myself, spouse, pavent, or child when medically
L
fnecessary;
O{}__ because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my spouse;

son or daughter; _ parent is on active duty or call to active duty status in
% support ol a contingency operation as a member of the National Guard or
@ Reserves.
because am the  spousc;  son or daughter; — parent;  next of kin of

a covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

Dectails of the needed intermittent leave:

I anticipate returning to work at my regular schedule on .

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



RQ/Q/(‘/({\QL - [
Y\Lpl(kcw wvH/] Code No. 409.3E3
W\‘\’?D ¥O CU‘KQM\M %(W\S Page 1 of 4

LICENSED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE CERTIFICATION F(

Employee's Name

Patient's Name (if different from employee) /

The attached sheet describes what is meant by a "serious health conditigh" under the Family and
Medical Leave Act. Does the patient's condition, for which the emplgyee is taking FMLA leave,
qualify under any of the categories described? If so, please check {He applicable category.

M __— @ __ () I 4 ___

or None of the above

) J— (O

Describe the medical facts which support your certifica 'on including a brief statement as to how
the medical facts meet the criteria of one of these cate

a. State the approximate date the conditiop/commenced, and the probable duration of the
condition (and also the probable duration of the patient's present incapacity, i.e. inability to
work, attend school or perform other regular activities due to the serious health condition,
treatment therefor, or recovery thefefrom, if different):

nployee to take work only intermittently or to work on a less than

b. Will it be necessary for the
/the condition (including for treatment described in Item 6 below)?

full schedule as a result o

c¢. If the condition ig/a chronic condition (condition #4) or pregnancy, state whether the patient is
presently incapgcitated and the likely duration and frequency of episodes of incapacity:

a. If additiopdl treatments will be required for the condition, provide an estimate of the probable
number #f such treatments:

If thg'patient will be absent from work or other daily activities because of treatment on an
intérmittent or part-time basis, also provide an estimate of the probable number of and interval
between such treatments, actual or estimated dates of treatment if known, and period required
for recovery if any:

East Buchanan Community School District



Qﬂwﬂdﬁ_ “No hfgﬂ" Need e Code No. 409.3E4
replaced wish o

Page 1 of 7

ek S+

LICENSED EMPLOYEE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST WORK SHEET

Complete this work sheet upon receiving a request for family and medical leave that may qualify under
the Family Medical Leave Act. Be sure to note the requirements relating to family and medical leave in
the school district's policy/collective bargaining agreement prior to relying on this work sheet as the sole
source of the school district's obligations. Also be sure to note the definitions in Regulation 409.3R2.

Section I: Eligible Employee. (Please check all that apply.)

Covered by a policy/collective bargaining agreement. (If checked, please move to Section I1.)

The employee must meet all criteria below to move to Section II.

50 or more employees are on the payroll of or under contract to the school
district.

Worked 52 weeks in the school district (consecutive or nonconsecutive). OR
Worked 12 months in the school district (consecutive or nonconsecutive).

Worked 1250 hours for the school district in 12 months prior to the request. Full-
time professional employees who are exempt from the wage and hour law may be
presumed to have worked the minimum hours required.

Section II: Family and Medical Leave Purpose. (One must be checked to move to Section III)

Birth and care of newborn prior to first anniversary of child's birth.

Care of adopted child or foster care child prior to first anniversary of placement.

Care for serious health condition of spouse, child, child for which employee is "in loco

parentis" and for any of these if they are over eighteen and have a disability which prevents
the child from caring for himself or herself.

Requested medical certification for family and medical leave due to a serious
health condition of the spouse, parent or child on (date) .

Received medical certification within 15 days of the request on (date) .
Serious health condition of the employee.

Requested medical certification for family and medical leave due to a serious
health condition of the employee on (date) .

Received medical certification within 15 days of the request on (date) .

Other purposes contained in a policy/collective bargaining agreement.

East Buchanan Community School District



U.S. Department of Labor i
Wage and Hour Division

U.S. Wage and Hour Division
(February 2013)

Fact Sheet #28H: 12-month period under the Family and Medical Leave Act
(FMLA)

The FMLA entitles eligible employees who work for covered employers to take unpaid, job-protected leave in a
defined 12-month period for specified family and medical reasons. Generally, employers may select one of four
options to establish the 12-month period to be uniformly applied to all employees taking FMLA leave. This
fact sheet does not address the “single 12-month period” applied to military caregiver leave, which differs from
the employer determined 12-month period used for other FMLA leave reasons. See Fact Sheets #28M(a),
Military Caregiver Leave for a Current Servicemember under the FMLA or #28M(b), Military Caregiver Leave
for a Veteran under the FMLA.

The employer may use any of the following methods to establish the 12-month period:
(1) the calendar year — 12-month period that runs from January 1 through December 31,

(2) any fixed 12-months — 12-month period such as a fiscal year (for example, October 1 through
September 30), a year starting on an employee’s anniversary date (for example, September 22 through
September 21), or a 12-month period required by state law;

(3) the 12-month period measured forward — 12-month period measured forward from the first date an
employee takes FMLA leave. The next 12-month period would begin the first time FMLA leave is
taken after completion of the prior 12-month period; or

e For example, Lucia’s FMLA leave begins on November 6, 2012 so her 12-month period is
November 6, 2012 through November 5, 2013.

(4) a “rolling” 12-month period measured backward — 12-month period measured backward from the
date an employee uses any FMLA leave. Under the ‘‘rolling’’ 12-month period, each time an employee
takes FMLA leave, the remaining leave entitlement would be the balance of the 12 weeks which has not
been used during the immediately preceding 12 months.

o Example I: Michael requests three weeks of FMLA leave to begin on July 31%. The employer
looks back 12 months (from July 31* back to the previous August 1) to see if any FMLA leave
had been used. Michael had not taken any previous FMLA leave, so he is entitled to the three
weeks he requested and has nine more weeks available.

August July
1 31
12 MONTH LOOK BACK |

3 Wecks

FMILA

Leave
,J‘ .~
I | | | | | | | ! I l I -

81 91 101 MM 12t 1M 21 31 41 st &1 TR 8N
DATE TIMELINE FS 28H




POLICY REVIEW

1°' Reading

ok ok ok ok e sk ok ok sk ok ok ok sk sk ok 36 ok sk ok ol sk 2k sk ok ok 3k sk o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok

Current EB policy is marked with changes based on the current IASB policy reference manual
Wording to be removed is erossed-out

Additions are in bold and underlined

Decisions to be made are highlighted

Opt\ional wording is in [italics and brackets]

3 ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok ke ik sk ok ok sk 3k ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok 3k K ok

Policy Code Signs & Symbols:

-R This symbol following a policy code number indicates the statement is an administrative regulation
rather than a boatd policy

-E This symbol following a policy code number indicates the statement is an exhibit rather than a board
policy.

Legal Reference  This sign indicates the legal references. They tell the user where they may find the statutes, case
law, attorney general opinions, or administrative rules that give authority to a policy.

Cross Reference  Many policies in the manual relate to other policies in the manual. Cross references are provided to
assist the user in finding all of the related policies. '



Code No. 105
This would be a new policy for the district. The first reading of this policy was tabled at the Page 1 of 2
December 2020 school board meeting and no further action was taken to implement it.
ASSISTANCE ANIMALS

It is the policy of East Buchanan CSD to foster an equal education environment for all students,
employees and community members within the district. The purpose of this policy is to provide
guidance to the district on the proper use of assistance animals while on district property. The district
shall allow the use of qualified service to accompany individuals with disabilities in all areas of district
buildings where the public is normally allowed to go. This can include classrooms, cafeteria and school
buses. Individuals with disabilities are people who have a physical or mental impairment that
substantially limits one or more major life activities. Service animals are dogs and in some instances
miniature horses trained to do work or perform tasks for individuals with disabilities.

Service animals must be current on all required vaccinations. Service animals also must be under
control while on district grounds. The animal may be under control by either the individual with a
disability, or a handler of the service. Under control means harnessed, leashed or tethered, unless these
devices interfere with the animal’s work, in which case under voice or other directive control.

Miniature Horses as Service Animals

Miniature horses shall be allowed as service animals within the district whenever it is reasonable to
allow them. Factors to consider when determining reasonableness include: whether the miniature horse
is house broken; whether the miniature horse is under the owner’s control; whether the facility can
accommodate the miniature horse’s type, size and weight; and whether the miniature horse’s presence
will not compromise legitimate safety requirements necessary for safe operation of the facility.

Establishing the Need for a Service Animal
When no prior notice is given to the district of the use of a service animal, the Superintendent and/or
school administrators are permitted to ask the following questions:

“Do you need/require this animal because of a disability? ”
If the animal’s trained tasks are not readily apparent, the administrator may ask:
“What work or task has the animal been trained to perform?”

Service Animals in training

Assuming the handler and animal are otherwise allowed, individuals who train service animals will also
be allowed access with their service animal in training to public areas of district buildings and property.
The service animal in training is expected to abide by the same requirements as a service or assistive
animal.

Exclusion of Service Animals

In certain limited circumstances, it may be reasonable to exclude the use of a service animal from
district property. The Superintendent is permitted to exclude service animals from district buildings and
property in the following circumstances: The presence of the animal poses a direct threat to the health
and safety of others; the owner or handler is unable to control the animal; the animal is not house
broken; the presence of the animal significantly disrupts or interferes with the educational process; or
the presence of the animal would require a fundamental alteration to the program. If a service animal is
properly excluded from district property, the district shall provide the student served by the animal the
opportunity to participate in the program, service or activity without having the service animal on
district property.



Code No. 105
Page 2 of 2

Emotional Support Animals and Therapy Animals [Optional section as these animals are not
commonly required to be accommodated]

Emotional support animals are medically prescribed to provide therapeutic benefit through dedicated
companionship. Emotional support animals’ sole function is to provide emotional support or comfort.
Therapy animals are involved in an animal-assisted therapy program involving animals as a form of
treatment.

Emotional support animals and therapy animals do not meet the definition of service animals. However,
the district recognizes their value in our community. The superintendent shall evaluate the use of
emotional support animals and therapy animals on a case-by-case basis. District employees may use
therapy animals in the course of their regular duties only after receiving permission from the
superintendent.

Student use of Emotional Support Animals and Therapy Animals

Factors the superintendent should consider in making the determination include but are not limited to:

a. Whether the animal is housebroken

b.  Whether the animal has a current vaccination certificate

c.  Whether the animal has been recommended through an individual education plan (IEP) or a 504
plan as necessary for the student to receive free access to public education

d.  Whether the facility can accommodate the animal’s type size and weight, and

e.  Whether the animal’s presence will not compromise legitimate safety requirements necessary for
safe operation of the facility

Employee use of Therapy Animals as part of Education Environment

Before permission to use therapy animals is granted, staff members must provide:
1. Proof that the animal is certified to be a therapy animal;
2. An explanation of how the animal will be used, including research supporting the use of therapy
animals;
3. A plan for how the staff member will provide for the care and control of the animal,
4. A plan for how the staff member will accommodate students with allergies to the animal,; and
3. A current vaccination certificate for the animal.

Legal References: 29 U.S.C. §7%4
42 U.S.C. §12132
28 C.FR. 35
lowa Code §216C

Cross References: 606.3  Animals in the Classroom

NOTE: The use of service animals is a civil right established by federal and state laws. However, the use of
emotional support and therapy animals does not necessarily have the same legal protections. The portion of this
policy in italics reflects optional language for your district to consider.

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: The lowa Civil Rights Act (ICRA) was updated in order
to better align with the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. The ICRA now uses the same terminology
of service animals and limits service animals to dogs and in qualifying instances, miniature horses. This
policy language has been updated to reflect this alignment and to clarify the species of acceptable
service animals to those permitted by law.

Approved Reviewed Revised



Code No. 200.1

ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The East Buchanan Community School District board is authorized by and derives its organization from
lowa law. The board will consist of 5 board members. Board members are elected two (2) at-large and
three (3) by director district.

The board is organized for the purpose of setting policy and providing general direction for the school
district. The board will hold its organizational meeting at or before the first regular meeting following
the canvass of votes. The retiring board will transfer materials, including the board policy manual, and
responsibility to the new board.

The organizational meeting allows the outgoing board to approve minutes of its previous meetings,
complete unfinished business and review the school election results. The retiring board will adjourn and
the new board will then begin. The board secretary will administer the oath of office to the newly-elected
board members. The board secretary will preside while the new board elects the president and vice-
president of the new board.

NOTE: lowa law establishes the organizational meeting at or before the first regular meeting following
the canvass of votes. Board members elected at a general election must qualify at or before the
organizational meeting.

IASB Quarterly Policy Update: Following changes made to the law during the 2021
legislative session boards now have flexibility to hold their organizational meeting either at
or before the first regular meeting following the canvass of votes. This additional flexibility
has been updated in the policy language.

Legal Reference: Towa Code §§ 274.2; 275.23A; 277.23, 28, .31, 279.1, .5, .7, .8, .33.
281 LA.C. 12.3(2).

Cross Reference: 202 Board of Directors Members
206.1 President
206.2  Vice-President
210 Board of Directors' Meetings

Approved: April 14, 2004
Reviewed: February 10, 2010; May 11,2015
Revised: January 8, 2020

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Code No. 210.8

BOARD MEETING AGENDA

The tentative agenda for each board meeting will state the topics for discussion and action at the board
meeting. The agenda is part of the public notice of the board meeting and will be posted and distributed.

Persons requesting to place an item on the agenda must make a request to the superintendent prior to the
drafting of the tentative agenda. The person making the request must state the person's name, address,
purpose of the presentation, action desired and pertinent background information. Requests from the
public may be added to the tentative agenda at the discretion of the superintendent after consultation with
the board president. Requests received after the deadline may only be added to the agenda for good
cause.

The tentative agenda and supporting documents will be sent to the board members days prior to the
scheduled board meeting. These documents are the private property of the board member. Persons
wishing to view the tentative agenda and supporting documents may do so at the central administration
office.

The board will take action only on the items listed on the tentative agenda posted with the public notice.
Items added to the agenda may be discussed or taken under advisement by the board. If an added item is
acted upon, the minutes of the board meeting will state the reason justifying the immediate action.

It is the responsibility of the board president and superintendent to develop the agenda for each board
meeting. Any board member may place an item on the next regular agenda with the consent of a
majority of the board. Board members wishing to do so should provide notice to the
superintendent and board president days prior to the scheduled meeting.

NOTE: There is no legal requirement for the method used in developing the board agenda. This
policy states the common procedure for drafting the board agenda. If a board uses another procedure,
it should be reflected in this policy.

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: The language update to this policy is not a legal
requirement. This update is recommended as a best practice for districts to facilitate the voice of the
board to be heard during meetings. This updated language provides an opportunity for the majority of the
board to place an item on the meeting agenda. Boards still maintain the ability to call a special meeting if
a majority of the board wishes to have one.

Legal Reference: lowa Code §§ 21, 279.8

Cross Reference: 210 Board of Directors' Meetings
211 Open Meetings
213 Public Participation in Board Meetings
215 Board of Directors' Records
402.5 Public Complaints About Employees
502.4 Student Complaints and Grievances

Approved: July 14,2004
Reviewed: July 13, 2015; March 11, 2020
Revised:

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools




Code No. 212
Page 1 of 2
CLOSED SESSIONS

Generally, board meetings will be open meetings, unless a closed session er-exemptmeeting is provided
for by law. +he-board-witthold-a-closed-session-orexempt-meeting-in-the-situations-stated-below:

Exeeptions-to-the Open-Meetinps

Closed sessions take place as part of an open meeting. The board may enter into a closed session for
any reason permitted by law.

The item for discussion in the closed session will be listed as part of the tentative agenda on the public
notice with the full text of the Jowa Code citation reference stated on the agenda. The motion for a
closed session, stating the purpose for the closed session, will be made and seconded during the open
meeting. A minimum of two-thirds of the board, or all of the board members present, if any are absent,
must vote in favor of the motion on a roll call vote. Closed sessions will be tape recorded and have
detailed minutes kept by the board secretary. No voting will take place in the closed session. Final
action on matters discussed in the closed session will be taken in an open meeting.

The minutes and the tape recording will restate the motion made in the open meeting, the roll call vote,
the members present, and the time the closed session began and ended. The tape-recordings and the
written minutes will be kept for one year from the date of the meeting. Real estate related minutes and
tapes recordings will be made public after the real estate transaction is completed.

The detailed minutes and tape recording will be sealed and will not be public records open to public
inspection. The minutes and tape-recording will only be available to board members or opened upon
court or administrative order in an action to enforce the requirements of the open meetings law. The
board.has complete discretion as to whom may be present at a closed session, but generally closed
sessions will be limited to the board, a recording secretary and the superintendent if indicated. The
board has discretion to nominate the board secretary or any board member to serve as recording
secretary for the closed session.

the-folowing:

- To-review-or-diseussrecords-which-are-required-or-authorized-by-state-orfederal- law-to-be
kept-confidential-or-to-be-kept-confidential-as-a-condition-for-the-board's-possession-orreceipt

——2—To-diseuss-strategy-with-legal-counsel-in-matters-presenthy-in-litigation—or-where Jitigation-is
impinent--diselosure-would-be-likely-to-prejudice-or-disadvantage the-board-

——3—TFeo-diseusswhether-to-conduet-a-hearing-or-conduect-a-hearing-for-suspension-or-expulsion-of
a-studentunless-an-open-meeting-isrequested-by-the-studentor-the-parent-of the-student:




Code No. 212
Page 2 of 2
CLOSED SESSIONS

mmmﬁ—khe—beﬂrdﬂa&yﬂheheﬁ—ﬂn—e*aﬁme&mn—%ﬁhe#ﬂ%wmg—

——F———negotating-sessions—strategy-meetings-of public-employers-er-employee-organizations;
mediation-and-the-deliberative process-otfarbitration;

——2——to-discuss-strategy-in-mattersrelating-to-employment-conditions-of employees-not-covered-by
the collective-bareaintnetaw:

—3——to-conduet-a-private-hearingrelating-to-the recommended-termination-ofa-teacher's-contract:
Fhe-private-hearing-however—in-the-teacher's-contract-termination-will-be-recorded-verbatim

by-peonr-peposter—and

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: This policy has been updated to clarify
language on when to utilize closes sessions. Language related to exempt meetings has also been
removed from this policy. Exempt meetings are separate from open meetings, and the topic should
be separated into a distinct board policy.

Legal Reference: Iowa Code §§ 21; 22.7; 279.24.

Cross Reference: 208 Ad Hoc Committees
211 Open Meetings
212.1 Exempt Meetings

Approved: July 14,2004
Reviewed: July 13,2015; March 11, 2020
Revised: January 11,2012



NEW POLICY

Code No. 212.1
EXEMPT MEETINGS

Board meetings at which a quorum is not present, or gatherings of the board for purely ministerial or
social purposes when there is no discussion of policy or no intent to avoid the purposes of the open
meetings law, are exempt from the open meetings law requirements. Since gatherings of this type are
exempt from the open meetings requirements, they can be held without public notice, be separate from an
open meeting, be held without recording the gathering or taking minutes, and be held without a vote or
motion. The board may also hold an exempt session for the following reasons, or as may be otherwise
authorized by law:

l. Negotiating sessions, strategy meetings of public employers or employee organizations,
mediation and the deliberative process of arbitration;

2. to discuss strategy in matters relating to employment conditions of employees not covered by
the collective bargaining law;

3. to conduct a private hearing relating to the recommended termination of a teacher's contract.
The private hearing however, in the teacher's contract termination will be recorded verbatim
by a court reporter; and

4. to conduct a private hearing relating to the termination of a probationary administrator's
contract or to review the proposed decision of the administrative law judge regarding the
termination of an administrator's contract.

NOTE: Meetings exempt from the Open Meetings law are separate, standalone meetings of the board.
For this reason, exempt meetings should never take place within an open meeting. Exempt meetings may
be placed before or after an open meeting. But once an open meeting has convened, it should be
adjourned prior to holding an exempt meeting. While there is no legal requirement to provide notice or
keep minutes for exempt meetings, there may be intrinsic benefit for the community to understand that the
board is communicating in a transparent fashion. For this reason, boards may choose to provide a notice
that they intend to gather for an exempt meeting.

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: Exempt meeting language from policy 212 has
been moved to create this distinct policy. Language has been updated to clarify the use of exempt
meetings.

Legal Reference: Iowa Code §§ 20.17; 21; 22.7; 279.15, .16,
Cross Reference: 208 Ad Hoc Committees

211 Open Meetings

212 Closed Sessions

Approved Reviewed Revised

East Buchanan CSD Policy




Code No. 307
COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

Questions and problems are resolved at the lowest organizational level nearest to the complaint. School
employees are responsible for conferring with their immediate supervisor on questions and concerns.
Students and other members of the school district community will confer with a licensed employee and
then with the principal on questions and concerns.

If resolution is not possible by any of the above, individuals may bring it to the attefition ofthe
superintendent within five (5) school days of their discussion with the principal«If there is no‘tésolution
or plan for resolution by the superintendent within five (5) school days of the individual's discussion
with the superintendent, the individual may ask to have the question or problem placed'on the board
agenda. It is within the board’s discretion whether to hear the concern.

It will first be the responsibility of the administrators to resolve questjons and'problems raised by the
employees and the students they supervise and by other members of the school districtcommunity.

Legal Reference: lowa Code § 279.8

Cross Reference: 213 Public Participation in Board Meetings
213.1 Public Complaints
401.4  Employee Complaints
502.4  Student Complaints and Grievances
504.3 Student Publications

Approved December 8, 2004 Reviewed _ April 12, 2017 Revised

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Code No. 401.4
EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS

Complaints of employees against fellow employees should be discussed directly between employees as

appropriate for the nature of the complaint. Hneecessary; Complaints will-be-brought-directiy-to-the

mediate-supervisor—prineipal-orsuperintendent-and-will-be-should be made in a constructive and
professional manner. Complaints will-never-be-should generally not be made in the presence of other

employees, students or outside persons.

A-formal-grievance-procedure-is-contained-in-the mastercontract-between-the-employee's-licensed

WWa%&HWwW%mWMM%WHM
at-the-employees o rievanee-procedures

If the complaint cannot be resolved, the employee may discuss the matter with their immediate
supervisor. If the matter cannot be resolved within days of speaking with the immediate

supervisor, the employee may discuss it with the principal within days of the supervisor's
decision. If the matter cannot be resolved by the principal, the employee may discuss it with the
superintendent within days after speaking with the principal.

If the matter is not satisfactorily resolved by the superintendent, the employee may ask to have
the matter placed on the board agenda of a regularly scheduled board meeting in compliance with
board policy. The board retains discretion as to whether to consider or take action on any

complaint,

This policy is designed to create an appropriate process for pursuing general emplovee
complaints. However, employees wishing to address a complaint on a topic with a more
specialized procedure such as master contract grievances, or bullying or harassment claims
should follow the appropriate process set forth in the master contract, employee handbook or
other board policies specific to that topic.

[Insert additional information (e.g., specific steps, contacts, etc.) regarding the district’s complaint
process, if one is not contained in another district document].

NOTE: Boards should adapt IASB sample policies to meet the needs of the local district. Please
ensure that the language contained in local policy is consistent with language contained in other
district documents (e.g., handbooks, master contracts, etc.).

NOTE: There should be reasonable limits on the number of days an employee has to pursue a
complaint. Cross reference with the number of days listed in policy 502.4 for consistency.

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: This policy has been updated to utilize the same process
for handling employee complaints as is used for student complaints. By utilizing the same procedures this
builds clarity for the district and for employees.

Legal Reference: lowa Code §§ 20; 279.8
Cross Reference: 210.8 Board Meeting Agenda
Approved _January 11,2006 Reviewed _November 15, 2017 Revised

East Buchanan Community School District



Code No. 502.4

STUDENT COMPLAINTS AND GRIEVANCES

Creating an environment where students feel comfortable addressing their concerns in a
meaningful manner is vital to the learning process. It is the goal of the board to resolve student
complaints at the lowest organizational level. Student complaints and grievances regarding board
policy or administrative regulations, or other matters should be addressed to the student's teacher or
another licensed employee, other than the administration, for resolution of the complaint. Jt-is-the-goal

MMMMHMH#%HPMMHMGMW%WG&&H%

If the complaint cannot be resolved by a licensed-employee student’s teacher or other licensed
employee, the student may discuss the matter with the principal within 5 calendar days of the
employee's decision. If the matter cannot be resolved by the principal, the student may discuss it with
the superintendent within § calendar days after speaking with the principal.

If the matter is not satisfactorily resolved by the superintendent, the student may ask to have the matter
placed on the board agenda of a regularly scheduled board meeting in compliance with board policy.
The board retains discretion as to whether to consider or take action on any complaint.

NOTE: There should be reasonable limits on the number of days a student has to pursue a
complaint. Cross reference with the number of days listed in policy 401.4 for consistency..

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: This policy language has been
updated to build clarity of purpose and to clarify the process for handling student

complaints.
Legal Reference: lowa Code § 279.8
Cross Reference: 210.8 Board Meeting Agenda
213 Public Participation in Board Meetings
502 Student Rights and Responsibilities
504.3 Student Publications
Approved _December 13, 2006 Reviewed _December 13, 2017 Revised

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



Code No. 606.6

INSUFFICIENT CLASSROOM SPACE

It is the goal of the district to create learning environments that encourage the growth and
development of each student. Providing classrooms with an appropriate student-teacher ratio is
central to achieving this goal. Insufficient classroom space exists when conditions in the district
adversely affect the implementation of the district’s goals and its educational program,

Insufficient classroom space is determined on a case-by-case basis.

In making its determination whether insufficient classroom space exists, the board may consider several
factors, including but not limited to, the nature of the education program, the grade level, the available
licensed employees, the instructional method, the physical space, student-teacher ratios, equipment and
materials, facilities either being planned or under construction, facilities planned to be closed, financial
condition of the school district and projected to be available, a sharing agreement in force or planned, a
bargaining agreement in force, laws or rules governing special education class size, board-adopted
school district goals and objectives, and other factors considered relevant by the board.

This policy is reviewed by the board annually. It is the responsibility of the superintendent to bring this

policy to the attention of the board each year.

NOTE: This is a policy mandated by Iowa's open enrollment law and reflects the requirements of the
law.

IASB October 2021 Quarterly Policy Updates Note: This policy has been updated to
provide additional information on the purpose of this policy and the parameters for
assessing when insufficient classroom space exists for districts.

Legal Reference: lowa Code § 282.18(13).
281 LA.C. 17.6(3).

Cross Reference: 103 Long-Range Needs Assessment
501.15 Open Enrollment Transfers - Procedures as a Receiving District
606.1 Class Size - Class Grouping

Approved _February 18, 2008 Reviewed _March 13,2013 Revised

Board Policy East Buchanan Community Schools



